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Introduction from the Chief Officer Jo Webster and Clinical Chair Dr Phillip
Earnshaw.
Welcome to our Annual Report and review of 2016/17. The last year has been focused on
transforming services and laying the foundations for changes in the way health and social care
is delivered across Wakefield and district.
Over the last few years, NHS Wakefield Clinical Commissioning Group (the CCG), working
with partners in health, social care and the voluntary sectors has been at the forefront of work
to radically change and enhance the way health and social care is provided for local people. In
this report you will find out more about our Connecting Care programme, our Vanguard
programme to enhance care in nursing and residential homes and the development of
community based multi-specialty providers (MCPs). These are some of the projects we have
been leading that are also helping to shape the way in which care services are delivered
across the country.
Demand for services is growing, so we need to do things differently and make the very best
use of the public pound so that we can continue to deliver excellent and accessible care.
With this in mind, NHS Wakefield CCG is committed to working closely with all our partners to
build a sustainable and integrated local health and social care system which delivers high
quality care in our communities for all the people of Wakefield and district.
Most of our work takes place at a local level through the Wakefield Health and Wellbeing plan
which aims to deliver significant improvements in the health of the population over the next five
years. The Health and Wellbeing Plan focuses on how we can improve local health outcomes
and improve people’s access to primary and community care. The key element of this plan is
to create a new approach to providing more joined up care through an Accountable Care
System across Wakefield and district by 2018. The development of an Accountable Care
System builds on the work undertaken over the last few years by West Wakefield Health and
Wellbeing as part of the national Vanguard programme. The organisation will pull together
community services delivered by providers, the third sector, local council and the NHS under
one umbrella structure.
By bringing services together we will be able to deliver a community system which better
supports patients by being joined-up, ensuring the patient only has to tell their story once
rather than to multiple agencies and organisations.
We also work closely with North Kirklees Clinical Commissioning Group to plan hospital
services across Mid Yorkshire and beyond and we are increasingly working at an area level
across West Yorkshire and Harrogate to develop plans for more specialist services. This is
known as the Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP). Other key areas include working
to commission regional services, such as the Yorkshire Ambulance Service and joining with
North Kirklees CCG to secure quality services from Mid Yorkshire Hospital Trust.
The role of the STP is to consider how more specialist services can be organised across the
West Yorkshire and Harrogate region, enabling patients to have access to care in centres of
excellence, ensuring the quality of care they will receive will deliver the best patient outcomes.
Public opinion really matters to us. We want local people to play a bigger part in telling us what
they expect from services and what they think about our plans. To reinforce this, throughout
the year we have actively undertaken public engagement and communications campaigns to
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help tell the Wakefield and district story, and gather public views as we develop our plans. This
ongoing work is detailed in this report.
We are committed to achieving the best possible improvement in health of the people of
Wakefield district. We continue to manage our resources carefully and use our workforce in an
agile and flexible way.
This report describes what we are doing to improve patient experience and the health of
people in Wakefield and how you can get involved.

INSERT NEW IMAGES

Jo Webster (Chief Officer)
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Dr Phillip Earnshaw (Chair)

Statement on the purpose and activities of the organisation
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) are provided with NHS money from central
Government to plan and buy health care services.
CCGs are membership organisations, consisting of GPs from within a defined geographical
area. As such, they are able to understand the health needs of the population they represent
and procure services accordingly.
During 2016/17, the membership of the CCG was drawn from 40 GP practices across the
district, serving a registered population of 363,279 in the Wakefield district. The number of
practices reduced to 38 in April 2017 following the closure of one practice and the merger of
two others.
NHS Wakefield CCG’s priorities are detailed in the image below, they are:
 Early years
 Mental health
 Long term conditions
 Older people.
With the themes of:
 Inequality
 Healthy living and quality of life .
These are detailed in the section Working with Wakefield Council on page 8.
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By focusing on the above priorities, we will deliver against the five year outcomes below:

Radical reduction in
hospital admissions
where appropriate
leading to reinvesting in
prevention

A shift towards allocation
of resources based upon
primary and secondary
prevention and social
determinants of ill health

New Accountable Care
Systems to deliver new
models of care

5 Year
Outcomes
Collective prevention
resource across the
health and social care
sector and wider social
determinant partners

A strong ambitious coowned strategy for
ensuring safe and healthy
futures for children

Expanded Health and
Wellbeing Board
membership to represent
wider determinants

We are committed to:
 Planning services that will achieve the best possible improvement for health of the
people of Wakefield district
 Prioritising healthcare interventions that are most likely to be effective and improve
quality of life
 Making sure that care is safe and that people have a positive experience of using
services
 Getting the best value out of the money we spend and stay within our budget
 Giving all people equal access to services
 Protecting vulnerable people in line with local policies and the law in relation to children,
adults and people who cannot make decisions for themselves.
2016/17 was the third year of a plan that described what we will be doing to improve the health
of local people over the period from 2014 to 2019.
Our corporate objectives for the year were:
 To deliver a significant, measurable improvement in the health and wellbeing of the
population
 Enable integration of the health and social care system to deliver seamless care and
support to those most vulnerable and with greatest need
 Ensure admission to hospital only takes place when clinically necessary and that a
significant amount of assessment, diagnosis and treatment occurs within a primary or
community care setting on a planned basis
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Ensure an urgent and emergency care system which is easily navigated and enables
rapid and appropriate responses based upon assessed individual need
Develop a system of general practice which is accessible, responsive and integrated
into the local health and wellbeing system.

Our vision:
“We aim to commission quality services that will improve local patients’ experiences of care
and improve their health. To do this, we want to involve and listen to patients, practices,
partners and staff when altering or changing our services.”
“We want our working environment to be supportive and encourage creativity. We will work
with partner organisations, making sure we put patients at the heart of everything we do.”
Our values:
 Put patients at the heart of our commissioning decisions
 Build strong partnerships with and between practices
 Identify and share good practice
 Work with Wakefield Council, Public Health and partners to support the wider health
economy
 Encourage local people to tell us how to improve services
 Commission safe services, which are high-quality.
Our aims:
 Make sure we communicate our plans simply
 Abide by our vision
 Be honest and clear
 Respect opinions and value difference.
It is the responsibility of NHS Wakefield CCG to commission services based on the following
principles:
 Achieve the greatest possible improvement in health outcomes for the people of
Wakefield district, with the resources available
 Prioritise healthcare interventions that produce the greatest benefits for people in terms
of both clinical improvement / improvement in quality of life
 Services being of proven clinical effectiveness, securing the greatest possible health
gain from available resources
 Services being safe and offering good experience for the patient and their carers;
 Keep within budget and ensure services commissioned are cost effective to make sure
that the people of Wakefield district obtain the most value from the available resources
 Commitment to make sure that there is equitable access to services for patients within
Wakefield district; and
 Adherence to the NHS Wakefield CCG Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adult
Commissioning Policy 2013 and the Mental Capacity Act Policy 2012 and subsequent
updated revisions of these.
See: https://www.wakefieldccg.nhs.uk/home/work-with-us/corporate-documents-and-policies/
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Working with Wakefield Council
NHS Wakefield CCG plays a key role in the Health and Wellbeing Board for Wakefield. We
are signed up to a joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy which outlines how we will work with our
partners to develop solutions to local issues. The strategy is based on the local Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), which is a document that is produced by health and
local authorities and describes the health needs of the population.
You can read more about this at: http://www.wakefield.gov.uk/about-the-council/partnershipworking/health-and-well-being-board
The six priorities in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2013/16) for the district were:
Priority 1: Inequalities: If some people’s circumstances mean they are more likely to become
unwell or find it more difficult to get the care they need, we say they face ‘inequalities’.
Inequalities can be caused by people living in poorer areas, not having a job, not owning their
own home, or having a disability. These inequalities can affect general health and wellbeing.
The Health and Wellbeing Board wants to remove health and care inequalities and make sure
that everyone, no matter their social and economic status has equal access to good services.
Priority 2: Healthy living and quality of life: Some people have better health than others
because of what they do to keep active and have healthy thoughts and emotions. The Health
and Wellbeing Board wants to help people to keep healthy by doing things such as eating the
right food and taking more exercise. The Health and Wellbeing Board also wants people to
enjoy where they live and work.
Priority 3: Early years: Making sure that all babies and children have a healthy start is
important for the whole of their lives. In Wakefield some families have many different problems
due to lack of money and poor health. The Health and Wellbeing Board wants organisations to
work together to help parents and children get the support and services they need.
Priority 4: Mental health: Someone who has good mental health is happy with themselves
and their life. In Wakefield, more people are saying that they have mental health problems than
in other parts of the country. These problems can sometimes stay with the young people as
they grow up into adults. The Health and Wellbeing Board wants to help people of all ages
learn how to get through everyday life. The Health and Wellbeing Board also wants to help
people with mental health problems get the support they need.
Priority 5: Long term conditions: In Wakefield there are many people of all ages who have
illnesses and diseases that cannot be cured such as epilepsy and asthma. These are called
long term conditions. These conditions can make people very ill and some may need to go into
hospital. The Health and Wellbeing Board wants to prevent people getting long term conditions
and help those living with it to be as healthy as possible.
Priority 6: Older people: In Wakefield more people are living longer. While this is good, some
people who are old already have poor health. Some young people will also have health
problems as they get old. The Health and Wellbeing Board want to help older people keep
healthy and work with others to make services better.
We are currently working with Wakefield Council to develop a new Health and Wellbeing Plan
for 2017-2021, which is detailed on page 19.
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Key issues and risks for the CCG
This has been a challenging year for NHS Wakefield CCG, as it has been for the whole NHS.
Patient demand and seasonal pressures across the NHS meant that delivery of the targets that
are set out in the NHS Constitution, such as how quickly a person should be seen when they
have been referred to hospital, has proved difficult throughout the year. Although we have
seen an improvement in recent months, the target for people who attend A&E being seen and
treated within four hours has not been achieved for much of the year. Improving access to
planned care (referral to treatment) has also been a focus for the CCG. We continue to work
closely with partners across the health economy to improve access for patients.
Financial:
In line with the overall commissioning sector, the CCG was under significant financial pressure
in 2016/17 with challenging efficiency targets. This is likely to continue over the next few
years.
At the start of the year the CCG, along with related parties (NHS North Kirklees CCG and Mid
Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust), identified financial risks associated with delivery of the final
stages of the Meeting the Challenge programme. The risk was sought to be both managed
and mitigated throughout the year, reported to Governing Body on a regular basis and subject
to regular conversations with regulators; NHS England and NHS Improvement.
This risk remained a key discussion point throughout the year, resulting in all parties entering
an arbitration process in January 2017 to establish which parts of the health system should
report the impact. In February 2017, the arbitration process concluded with NHS Wakefield
CCG and NHS North Kirklees CCG being liable for the costs resulting in an off-plan position.
The CCGs efficiency savings target or ‘QIPP’ (Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention)
target was of a significant value in 16/17 which required increased focus. This was managed
through Clinical Cabinet, one of the formal committees at the CCG with significant clinical
representation. Detailed reporting on QIPP performance is also presented to our Integrated
Governance Committee.
It has taken a great deal of effort to deliver the financial position reported in these accounts
and to minimise the impact on services and service partners and looking ahead, as the NHS
enters a more financially challenged period, the need to work even more economically and
efficiently will be a system focus.

Performance Summary 2016/17
Working with our partners in health and social care, NHS Wakefield CCG has been the driving
force behind work to transform health and social care for local people.
Connecting Care and Vanguards
In 2010 we started on a journey to transform and integrate health
and social care to create a joined-up service to benefit all
patients. Our Connecting Care programme brings together the
skills of health, social care and voluntary sector staff and aims to
ensure:
 People receive care at or close to their homes
 Only those people who need to be in hospital are admitted
 Once admitted into hospital people only stay for as long as
is clinically necessary.
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The Connecting Care Hubs
A milestone in the development of integrated health and social care was the development of
Connecting Care ‘hubs’ covering the whole district in 2014. The Connecting Care hubs include
health, social care and voluntary staff who work together to offer a range of health and social
care services, providing crisis intervention to prevent avoidable hospital admission and support
to enable people to be discharged from hospital earlier. The service is designed to support
people to achieve better health outcomes, closer to home, and at the same time generate the
capacity required to enable acute hospital reconfiguration to be delivered.
The hubs are aligned to five GP Networks (see Members Report page 35), with Adult
Community Nursing teams serving these networks. In addition to basing therapists, community
matrons and social workers in the same place, the teams have established new roles for the
voluntary and community sector organisations who are working directly in the hubs (including
Age UK Wakefield District and Carers Wakefield and District), with new health roles such as
community based pharmacists working as integral members of the team.
The Connecting Care Hubs in real terms have ensured 1,321 fewer people have been
admitted to hospital since 2015. Success of the hubs has been measured against the following
outcomes:
 Care is co-ordinated and seamless
 Nobody is admitted to or kept in hospital or residential care unnecessarily
 People are supported and in control of their condition and care, enjoying independence
for longer
 Care is cost-effective and within available budgets
 All staff understand the system and work in it effectively
 Unpaid carers are prepared and supported to care for longer.
A three-year independent evaluation of the Connecting Care initiative has been commissioned
from by Niche Health and Social Care Consulting and Healthwatch (Wakefield). Almost 1000
service users, carers, and staff of the services involved have been interviewed. Some
headlines and quotes from the evaluation can be found below:
 97% of patients interviewed felt they had been treated with kindness and compassion by
the Connecting Care staff
 85% of patients interviewed rated the Connecting Care service as very good or good
 “We are nearer patients and more local. In an emergency we can respond quicker.”Connecting Care staff member
 “They have been brilliant, nothing but praise”- Connecting Care service user.
In 2014 NHS England published its Five Year Forward View, setting out a vision of a better
NHS: the vision included rapid progress to speed up the development of new care models for
promoting health and wellbeing and providing care that can act as a blueprint and inspiration
for other parts of the health and social care system.
In January 2015 the NHS invited individuals, organisations and partnerships to apply to
become ‘vanguard’ sites to co-design and establish new local care models, tackling national
challenges in the process.
Under the Connecting Care banner, NHS Wakefield submitted two bids, both of which were
successful in being awarded ‘vanguard’ status, these were:
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The Enhanced Health in Care Homes Vanguard
The Enhanced Health in Care Homes is a collaboration involving NHS Wakefield CCG,
Wakefield Council, Age UK Wakefield District, Wakefield District Housing, local GPs, NOVA,
Wakefield District Carers, South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust and the
Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust. The care homes vanguard aims to break the mould of
loneliness and fragmented care by joining up services for older people in supported living and
care homes
From January-July 2016, phase one of the pilot, the Vanguard delivered:
 28% reduction in emergency admissions a reduction of 4% more than the control
group (care homes not taking part)
 21% reduction in A&E attendances, a reduction of 5% more than the control group
 34% reduction in hospital beds- a reduction of 8% more than the control group.

West Wakefield multispecialty community provider (MCP) Vanguard
Six practices in West Wakefield, who were responsible for around 65,000 patients, were
supported as a vanguard to test approaches to delivering a broader range of primary and
community care services through one organisation. As part of the vanguard programme West
Wakefield worked in collaboration with two other GP practice networks in the area with a
combined patient population of 152,000. This Vanguard came to an end on March 31st 2017.
In2016 the West Wakefield Vanguard made a significant difference to local health care:
 2,400 hours of GP time were saved in local GP practices by to pharmacists providing
extra support to patients
 PhysioFirst is a new model of care where patients can choose to see a physio for an
initial assessment rather than wait to see a GP. Since April 2016, the practices
offered over 2,200 assessments, saving over 178 hours of GP time. As a result, 82%
of patients have been given advice on self-care, 29% have been referred onto
community physio and just 7% needed to be referred on to see their GP.
Click here to see a short video showing how these projects have been changing care for local
people.
The West Wakefield Vanguard was shortlisted for a number of awards in 2016. Here are a few
examples:
 Hospital to Home Service - won the Innovation in Partnership award at the 2016
Celebrating Innovation and Good Practice in the system event, hosted by Wakefield
and North Kirklees CCGs. You can find out more about this service here
 Shortlisted for two Health Service Journal awards for Primary Care Innovation
 Winners of the Best Project Award at the Resolve Antisocial Behaviour Conference
Awards. To find out more see here.

At the end of 2016, Connecting Care received confirmation from NHS England that we had
been successful in gaining funding to spread the work of our two Vanguards further across the
district.
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Wakefield was chosen as one of six areas nationally to develop a district wide MCP approach.
This follows on from the work of the West Wakefield Health and Wellbeing MCP. The funding
granted for 2017/18 included:
 Multispecialty Community Provider- £3.15 million
 Enhanced Health in Care Homes- £405,000.
The next step for Connecting Care is to build on the work of the hubs and take forward the
learning undertaken by the district’s vanguard transformation programme, to make the vision
for a truly connected care system in Wakefield come alive across the district.
Hospital Reorganisation
The first major phase of reorganisation of services run by the Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS
Trust was completed in September 2016 with the opening of two new birth centres and
centralisation of the consultant labour ward, neo-natal, children’s inpatient care and acute
surgery.
The changes are part of a three-year programme which was approved by the Secretary of
State for Health in 2014 to enhance safety and secure more sustainable services for the
500,000 people living in North Kirklees and Wakefield district.
When reconfiguration is fully implemented the main changes will be:
 Pinderfields Hospital will be the main centre for people with very serious illness
 Most people who need an emergency ambulance will be taken to Pinderfields
Hospital or the nearest appropriate hospital
 Dewsbury and Pontefract Hospitals will have open access to urgent care for people
who attend using their own transport
 Dewsbury and Pontefract Hospitals will provide planned care and will treat people
with less serious illness
 Patients with long term and complex conditions will be able to have more of their
care provided at home by teams of health and social care workers.
Following the changes in September 2016, the Children’s Assessment Unit (CAU) at Dewsbury
Hospital is now open from 10am and 10pm daily to care for children with less serious
conditions who need to attend for a short time for assessment and treatment. Inpatient care
for children is centralised at Pinderfields Hospital. Children’s outpatient clinics continue to be
provided on all three hospital sites and there will be increased access to care outside hospital
for children with complex needs.
Neonatal inpatient care has been centralised at Pinderfields Hospital and this includes a five
bed Transitional Care Unit located within the post-natal unit at Pinderfields Hospital to manage
low intensity special care babies next to their mothers.
New midwife-led birth centres have opened at Dewsbury and Pinderfields Hospitals,
complementing the existing birth centre at Pontefract and the Pinderfields labour ward has
been extended to manage all complex births and births requiring consultant intervention for
women from North Kirklees and Wakefield district.
All emergency surgery will be provided at Pinderfields and more planned surgery will be
provided at Dewsbury and Pontefract.
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Between spring and autumn 2017 further changes are planned, including more ambulatory
care services and dedicated assessment services for frail older people. Dewsbury Hospital will
continue to provide 24/7 emergency care but inpatient care for people with serious, urgent
medical conditions, complex planned colorectal surgery and critical care services will be
centralised at Pinderfields.
Outpatient care and day surgery will continue to be provided at all three hospitals and there will
be rapid access to clinics, where appropriate, for patients who present at Dewsbury
Emergency Department needing surgical assessment.

Communications and Engagement
Helping patients make the right choice
Ensuring patients access the right services at the right time is the key to many services running
effectively. In 2016/17 we ran several campaigns to promote health and wellbeing, and ensure
people know how and where to access services.
Here are some examples of the campaigns we have run:
Winter
Winter is always a very busy time for NHS services and the last year has been no exception.
Our key objective during this period was to ease seasonal pressure and ensure that people
who were most at-risk sought early help to avoid hospital admission and choose the most
appropriate service for their needs.
We ran extensive broadcast, print and online advertising to support patient decision-making.
We also put together a high-profile video campaign to raise awareness of the additional
pressures faced by hospitals when patients attend who could be treated elsewhere. The
behind-the-scenes video reached more than 150,000 people through social media alone, with
statistics showing a tangible impact on reducing the number of A&E attendances during its key
period of promotion. You can view the video here.
New website
After several months of engaging with the public to find out what information people want about
local health care, we launched our new website in February 2017. The site is clear and crisp,
and allows visitors to find local NHS services. You can visit the site here.
GP Online Services
GP practices have been promoting access to Online Services, such as booking appointments,
ordering repeat prescriptions and viewing GP records. Information about how to use GP online
services is provided in leaflets, posters and appointment cards. Wakefield is a transformation
area and has higher targets to reach of 25% of patients per practice registered to use GP
Online Services, a target we are aiming to reach by spring 2017.
GP Online Services have many benefits for patients and practices, offering a secure and free
way to contact the GP saving people a phone call or journey to the surgery.
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The materials provided to practices and given to
patients encouraged them to sign up and use
the services. NHS England has produced a GP
toolkit which provides support and ideas to
promote the services in GP practices. link.

Repeat Prescription Changes
In autumn 2016, the CCG ran a
communications campaign to explain
changes to repeat prescriptions. From 1st
November 2016, pharmacies and
dispensing companies were no longer able
to order medicines on behalf of patients.
Instead, patients now have to order their
repeat prescription directly from their GP.
These changes mean GPs can monitor and
discuss with patients what medicines they
need.
They are designed to improve patient safety as patients have more control and understanding
of their medicines and what they are taking at any particular time.
The money saved by reducing unneeded prescriptions is being reinvested in healthcare
services in Wakefield.
The campaign was focused on media (printed press), social media (pictured), direct patient
contact, advertisement and radio campaign.
Healthy Wakefield Engagement Brand
As part of our ongoing commitment to excellent patient
engagement, we launched Healthy Wakefield as an
overarching brand for our public engagement and
consultation work.
The new logo and branding is included on all our key
engagement documents.
Our social media channels have also had a cosmetic
refresh and are now Healthy Wakefield branded.
During the year our Twitter following has increased, we
now have just under 10,000 followers.
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The Healthy Wakefield brand is our mechanism to encourage people to interact with the CCG,
and to promote an ongoing discussion in the district about health. The brand is also used to
signpost the public to health care information.
Engagement opportunities
As part of our planning and decision making process, we create multiple opportunities for the
general public to interact with us and give their views on our plans and progress. These are
some of the ways we engaged with people in 2016/17.
Annual General Meeting (AGM)
Our AGM on in September 2016 at Lightwaves Leisure Centre, in Wakefield, showcased the
organisations which help support health and wellbeing in the city, whilst looking at the state of
health in the district and what healthcare may look like in the future.
The event was attended by over 100 people and was a great opportunity for the public to find
out how the NHS in Wakefield performed during the year, and how it plans to meet the needs
of local communities in the future.

Commissioning Event
In January 2017, we held a public engagement event at Unity Works, Wakefield. The event
was to gather public opinion on the direction of travel for health and social care in Wakefield.
The event was a chance for the public to talk directly to
and question the people who are responsible for
planning health care services. .
A live ‘Twitter’ wall was used so people in the room
could tweet their thoughts of the event, and a graphic
freestyle artist was used to
draw out people’s ideas to
show visually what people
thought to the workshop
topics.
The event was attended by over 80 people. Outcomes of the
discussion will be used to help plan our commissioning strategy for
the year to come.
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Patient Participation Group Network (PPG Network):
GP practices are encouraged to have Patient Reference Groups (PRGs) to enable people to
get involved with their own GP practice. The Patient Participation Group Network supports
local PRGs. It provides opportunities for patient representatives of individual GP practices to
work with the CCG, as well as sharing areas of good practice among individual PRGs.
PPG Network members share information and updates on initiatives to improve patient
experience. Engagement at practice level is enabled through this mechanism and means the
views of local people are fed through to the CCG.
A number of GP practice PRGs have now set up
newsletters to share information with patients. Many
individual practice level groups have undertaken
surveys on patients’ experiences within practices and
the results of these have influenced their practice’s
individual work plans for the year. This is an example of
how GP service improvements are being driven by the
patients in partnership with GPs.
The PPG Network also provides an opportunity for individual PRG members to raise concerns
and have these addressed. These have included concerns that are specific to one practice as
well as issues that affect the whole district, such as plans for co-commissioning and the impact
this may have on the work of individual practices.
The PRG Network has also discussed and commented on:
 Outpatients appointment system at Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust
 Electronic-Referral system
 How the CCG engaged over plans to change arrangements for prescribing
 Development of Connecting Care Hubs Urgent and Emergency Services.
The CCG has also held two events during 2016 to bring members together, in June, to
coincide with the National Patient Participation Awareness week, and in November.
Network members are highly valued and provide:
 Ongoing feedback through the course of successive meetings, adding to the debate as
required for feedback to the CCG
 Feedback on communication and engagement plans, documents and reports which has
helped to shape our approaches
 Feedback on local services which is used to feed in as part of the commissioning work
and also to help shape the agendas and work of the group.
There is a commitment to increase the membership of the PPG Network and the CCG
provides support to both the network and to individual PRGs.
Patient Involvement & Patient Experience Committee (PIPEC):
The PIPEC meets four times a year. Members are drawn from across Wakefield to represent
patient views. Their role is to inform commissioning decisions and identify possible
improvements. PIPEC provides a single recognised structure to oversee the delivery of patient
involvement and patient experience activity and ensure real changes that benefit patients are
delivered.
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PIPEC members provide opinions and comment on documents and policies as well as giving
general feedback on local services, which has been used to influence commissioning plans.
This has included a wide range of topics such as looking at the needs of the deaf and hard of
hearing community in accessing various services, access to services for asylum seekers and
refugees and the needs of the transgender community in care home settings.
The Committee is chaired by the CCG’s Lay Member with responsibility for Patient and Public
Involvement. Minutes of the Committee are submitted to the CCG and this completes the
reporting mechanism between the Governing Body of the CCG and the public representatives.
Throughout the year the group met quarterly, a sample of what they looked at and contributed
to is detailed below:
 GP patient access policy
 Care homes
 Transport in Mid Yorkshire Hospitals.
Consultations and Engagement exercises undertaken during the year
During the year we undertook an extensive program of engagement and consultations. The full
details of these can be found in the Annual Engagement Report here. This section provides a
summary of the main work undertaken.
Connecting Care / Multi Speciality Community Provider Model (MCP)
As one of six areas nationally being supported by NHS England to develop a new model of
care, we have chosen to work towards a virtual MCP arrangement in 2017/2018 and are
supporting existing service providers to work together more closely under an alliance contract.
During Winter 2016/17, focus group-based engagement took place to find out what local
people thought about our ambition to work towards a virtual MCP arrangement. By the end of
the focus groups, 63% of people who filled in surveys thought that moving to the new model of
care is the right thing to do. The focus group-based engagement is only the first stage of
engagement on the MCP model for Wakefield. More
formal engagement will take place in summer 2017,
with a view to consultation on it in late 2017.
Healthy Wakefield Prescribing Changes - Gluten
free/ branded products/ over-the-counter products
engagement
As part of our ongoing health conversations with the
public, in November we ran a six-week public
engagement exercise focusing on the following
proposals:
 Gluten-free foods – the proposal was to not
routinely fund gluten-free foods on a prescription
basis
 Branded medicines – the proposal was that
requests for more expensive brands of
medicines should not be routinely supported in
cases where there is no scientific evidence of a
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difference between products
Over-the-counter medicines – the proposal to stop the routine prescribing of products
that are available in shops and pharmacies, some of which provide limited health
benefits to patients. This would not affect medicines which need to be prescribed by a
doctor. This engagement followed on from guidance issued to Wakefield GPs in late
2015 to reduce the prescribing of paracetamol products.

The engagement was aimed at the public, voluntary and community sector, and other key
stakeholders including health care staff.
The full engagement report including the key themes from the engagement can be found here

Park View and Queen Street Practices
The two practices in Normanton submitted a proposal to the CCG for Park View Surgery to
move all its services to Queen Street surgery by 1 April 2017 and for Park View Surgery to
close its building on Castleford Road. The boundaries of the surgeries would remain as they
were so that no existing patients would be disadvantaged in terms of access. Following patient
engagement, the CCG supported the proposed change. The practices have since worked with
their patient groups to develop a communications plan to ensure that patients in both practices
were given enough information about the change.
King Street GP Practice
In autumn 2016, we undertook a 12 week patient engagement to get people’s views about
closing the GP practice based at King Street Health Centre, in Wakefield city centre. The
engagement looked at two options going forward:
 Try to extend the current GP service either with the current provider or a new one
 Support patients to register at other surgeries instead.
The outcome of the engagement was to cease operating a GP practice from King Street Health
Centre. All registered patients were contacted and were advised to register with an alternative
practice. Most of the patients who were registered with the practice lived within the Wakefield
city centre area. There are nine other practices within two miles of King Street, all of which
have capacity to take new patients.
The changes did not affect the walk in service provided from King Street Health Centre, which
remains open from 8am to 8pm daily. The contract for the Walk in Centre was extended for at
least two years in March 2017. The full engagement report for King Street is available here.
Orchard Croft Medical Centre and Netherton Branch Surgery
Following a 12 week period of patient and stakeholder engagement in summer 2016, GPs at
Orchard Croft Medical Centre put forward a request for the closure of their Netherton Branch
Surgery. This request was originally refused in September 2016 because the CCG wanted to
know more about how the practice would support people with transport to Horbury and ensure
availability of appointments for all patients. The Medical Centre provided assurance on these
issues and the request was therefore agreed by the CCG in January 2017. The branch
surgery closed on 31st March 2017.
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Almshouse Surgery and Grove Surgery
Early in 2016 these two surgeries in Wakefield city centre told the CCG they wanted to merge
into one practice. The main surgeries share the same building but Almshouse surgery also
has a branch surgery at Sandal. The surgery ran engagement over the summer of 2016. This
included the involvement of their Patient Reference Group members, encouraging comments
from patients in the waiting rooms and an “open house” event. Evidence was presented to the
CCG who agreed to the merger. The new facility will be known as Trinity Medical Centre.
Dementia Engagement
In January 2017, the CCG ran an engagement exercise to support development of the patient
journey for people with dementia
88 people responded to the survey and 18 people were interviewed face-to-face. There was
also additional outreach work. The findings from the engagement are being used to inform the
development of a Dementia Outcomes Framework, and create a benchmark for how well
current services are meeting the needs of people living with dementia. The report will be
published on the CCG website.
Future in Mind – Mental Health
In October 2015, NHS Wakefield CCG in partnership with a range of services across the
district, published the Local Transformation Plan, describing the approach for Wakefield to
transforming services for children and young people. In October 2016, the plan was refreshed
to reflect the progress made with engaging children and young people, and future plans to
improve services.
A project board made up of a range of stakeholders has developed the transformation plan
collaboratively, and a number of actions are being taken forward. There has been robust
consultation to ensure feedback from children, young people and their families.
The engagement undertaken asked:
 What are the barriers to attending services?
 Where do you want to access services?
 Who do you talk to when you need emotional support?
What we heard:
 Barriers around travelling and feeling ‘strange’ in unfamiliar surroundings
 Young people wanted to access services close to where they go to school and live, in
places that are familiar to them
 Young people want to talk to their peers, and go online for support, and work with
services in their community (not stigmatised by ‘mental health’).
What we did:
 Developed community mental health teams delivering in localities – through schools and
community buildings
 Developed peer mentors – trained young people in schools for other pupils to talk to
about their feelings
 Set up online counselling for young people to access independently, including evenings
and weekends
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Commissioned the third sector to provide support to young people in the community,
utilising their existing relationships with young people.

Learning Disabilities – Transforming Care Partnership
Along with neighbouring CCGs in Calderdale, Huddersfield, North Kirklees and Barnsley, we
undertook a “My Health Day” in May 2016. This interactive event helped us to engage with
patients, carers and care workers about issues such as ‘what helps people feel safe and keep
calm?’ A total of 191 people attended.

Wakefield Health and Well Being Plan 2021
The Health and wellbeing plan 2021is a five-year forward view of how we will work to make a
difference to the overall health of people in Wakefield and district to live healthier lives. The
plan was developed by the CCG and is supported by the Wakefield Health and Wellbeing
Board, which includes representatives of all the agencies involved in health and social care in
the district. You can access the plan here.
Key outcomes in the Health and Wellbeing Plan - vision for 2021 are:
 To reduce the number of people staying in hospital – savings will be invested in
preventative health support
 To have a new Accountable Care System to deliver care that is delivered by a range
of organisations
 All Wakefield health and social care partners to work together to improve the factors
in society which affect health
 An ambitious strategy for ensuring safe and healthy futures for children
 Allocation of money based upon primary and secondary prevention and social
determinants of ill health.
The plan prioritises the following areas:
 Smoking
 Obesity
 Cardiology
 Respiratory
 Frail elderly
 A new model of care for Wakefield
 Integration of Wakefield support services.
Healthier, happier and longer lives is what every person wants and the Health and Wellbeing
Board is committed to supporting this by tackling inequality and helping people prevent some
of the current health problems continuing into future years.
The Health and Wellbeing Plan aims to provide broad cultural change across Wakefield in how
people live. It sets out how Wakefield partners will focus not only on health and social care in
Wakefield, but on the wider influences which affect health, particularly employment, housing,
social isolation, the built environment and education. Addressing these will make Wakefield a
place where people are more likely to live happy, fulfilled, long lives.
A communication strategy promoting the plan is currently being developed. This will include the
development of a public summary version of the document and actions to bring the strategy to
life to make a real difference to lives of people in Wakefield and district.

20 | P a g e

West Yorkshire and Harrogate Sustainability and Transformation Plan
(STP)
NHS Wakefield CCG plays a central role in the development of the regional West Yorkshire
and Harrogate STP, which is known as ‘Healthy Futures’. The STP is built up from the local
place based plans for each of the CCGs in West Yorkshire and Harrogate.
The STP focuses on services that need to be organised across a larger geographical area than
local districts to get the best health results for local people. The vision for West Yorkshire and
Harrogate STP is for everyone to have the best possible outcomes for their health and
wellbeing.
The core of the West Yorkshire STP is close partnership and, to this end, over the past six
months the leadership and staff of the West Yorkshire and Harrogate health and care
organisations have been working together to agree how to respond to local challenges and
how to deliver a vision for health and social care for the 2.6 million people who live in this area.
The STP sets out nine priorities which it aims to deliver through collaboration between
commissioners, local health services, councils and the voluntary sector:
 Prevention
 Primary and community services
 Mental health
 Stroke
 Cancer
 Urgent and emergency care
 Specialised commissioning
 Hospitals working together
 Standardisation of commissioning policies.
You can access the full version of the STP plan here
All organisations involved in delivering health and care are working closely together to better
meet people’s needs. This includes actively engaging with local populations to get people’s
views on any change proposals and listening to what people have to say to develop
these further and consulting where needed.
As part of the work supporting the STP, NHS Wakefield CCG has been seeking people’s views
about stroke services. This engagement will set the roadmap for more in-depth consultation on
stroke services at a regional level later in 2017.
South Yorkshire STP programme
Wakefield district borders the Barnsley area which is part of the South Yorkshire STP
programme, called Working Together. Some Barnsley patients choose to use services at Mid
Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust. To ensure patients who live in the crossover area have access
to engagement and consultations from the South Yorkshire STP, NHS Wakefield CCG is
helping to encourage people to give their views on changes in South |Yorkshire that could
affect people in Wakefield. .
There are eight priority areas across South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw:
 Healthy lives, living well and prevention
 Primary and community care
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Mental health and learning disabilities
Urgent and emergency care
Elective and diagnostic services
Children’s and maternity services
Cancer
Streamlining back office functions.

Full details of the South Yorkshire Plan are available here.
During the year, NHS Wakefield CCG supported the STP, by taking part in two consultations
between October 2016 and February 2017, these were on
 Critical care services for people who have had a stroke. The proposal was about
improving the experience of patients needing stroke care in Barnsley, Bassetlaw,
Chesterfield, Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield. A final decision on the future of
these services is expected soon


Children’s surgery and anaesthesia services. The proposal was to change a small
number of services to improve the care of children needing operations in Barnsley,
Bassetlaw, Chesterfield, Doncaster, Rotherham, Sheffield and Wakefield. A final
decision about the future of these services is expected soon.

360° Stakeholder Survey 2017
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) need to have strong relationships with a range of
health and care partners in order to be successful commissioners within the local system.
These relationships provide CCGs with on-going information, advice and knowledge to help
them make the best possible commissioning decisions to improve the quality and efficiency of
health services.
Each year all CCGs take part in the 360° stakeholder survey, which is commissioned by NHS
England and conducted by Ipsos MORI, to allow stakeholders to feed back on their working
relationships with CCGs. The results are used to support CCGs’ ongoing development and
feed into improvement and assessment conversations with NHS England.
Below are the key findings for NHS Wakefield CCG from the 2017 survey results:
 92% of stakeholders survey rated the effectiveness of our CCG as a system leader as
very or fairly effective (compared with 78% in 2016 and 73% nationally)
 78% of stakeholders said they were fairly, or very satisfied with the way the CCG has
engaged with them over the past 12 months
 100% senior local authority stakeholders said that the CCG is working well with the local
authority to deliver shared plans for integrated commissioning
 86% rated as very or fairly effective the clear and visible leadership of the CCG
(compared to a national average of 71%)
 78% have confidence in our ability to deliver plans.
100% of providers said:
 We are working ‘very well’ with them to develop plans
 Clinicians are involved in discussions about quality
 Response to quality issues is fair and proportionate
 We understand the challenges facing them.
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The 2017 survey findings show improvements in most areas compared with previous years.
The main area for development is engagement with member practices. The CCG is committed
to develop and improve this over the next year.

Supporting staff
Our staff are our most valuable resource and we offer a range of approaches to supporting
them.
Nurse Revalidation Readiness Event
Success October 2016
Nurses from primary care, Wakefield CCG
and Public Health came together for a
Nurse Revalidation event in October.
Revalidation is a process which was
introduced in April 2016 by the Nursing and
Midwifery Council (NMC), which all nurses
and midwives are required to undertake
every three years, in order to renew their
registration.
NMC Revalidation is the way in which
nurses and midwives demonstrate to the
NMC that they continue to practice safely
and effectively, and can remain on the
register.
The event was a huge success with a
notable shift in conversation from staff
feeling concerned to feeling optimistic and
more confident about revalidation.
Employee consultation and involvement
Our Staff Forum plays a key role in helping staff improve their wellbeing. The Forum has a
direct link to the Executive Team and meets monthly to discuss ways in which staff can be
better supported and involved.
NHS Wakefield CCG values effective staff communication.
We communicate regularly with staff through a variety of
means including:
 Our monthly newsletter
 Interactive staff briefings in which we discuss (and
sometimes vote on) a wide range of CCG initiatives
and developments
 Lunchtime events
 Through our internal staff social intranet, “Skyline”.
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Membership and Networks
Please see Members Report on page 36 onwards.

Performance
We are committed to improving quality of care and to making sure people have the best
possible mental and physical health outcomes. We monitor and report against a range of
performance measures to ensure improvement and progress is being made. Our ongoing
service reviews help to drive value and effectiveness.
In 2016/17, the CCG and individual service provider performance were reported against the
key standards and pledges in the NHS Constitution.
The Integrated Governance Committee oversees and challenges quality and performance
issues.

Healthcare associated infections
The CCG has established a robust post-infection review process which reviews all cases to
determine whether they were avoidable. Actions are taken as a result of the reviews to further
reduce infections. By the end of February 2017 the CCG had met the target of 0 MRSA
infections. The Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust however, reported one MRSA, the same
number of cases as the previous year.
For clostridium difficile (CDIFF), both the CCG and The Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust
exceeded the targets set for the year. The Kirklees and Wakefield Infection Prevention and
Control Team continue to undertake enhanced surveillance to determine common themes to
enable targeted work. CDIFF remains a priority across the local health economy and clinical
leaders from across the system will meet to discuss and identify if further additional actions can
be implemented.
Referral to Treatment
The Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust continued to face increased levels of demand
throughout 2016/17 on its elective services and as a result the CCG and The Mid Yorkshire
Hospitals NHS Trust experienced a downturn in performance against the monthly standards of
92% of people being treated within 18 weeks of being referred for a planned treatment. The
CCG has worked with the Trust to understand the reasons for the underperformance and the
Trust has put in place a robust recovery plan to ensure the standard improves.
A&E (Accident and Emergency)
A&E at The Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust faced high levels of demand in 2016/17 and as
a result did not achieve the standard for people attending A&E who were admitted, transferred
or discharged within 4 hours of arrival. National performance data confirms there was
increased demand across the country and that The Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust was the
fifth busiest A&E department for Type 1 attendances in England (Data source: NHS England;
January 2017).
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West Yorkshire was chosen by NHS England as an accelerator zone to improve A&E
performance. The West Yorkshire Accelerator Zone (WYAZ) aims to bring forward the
timescales for A&E improvement plans. The West Yorkshire health economy received an extra
£1.318m to support this work. Outcomes have included having a GP working in A&E to see
patients who do not need hospital care.
Ambulance response times
Yorkshire Ambulance Service (YAS) provide services across the whole of Yorkshire and
therefore performance at individual CCG level is not monitored. The main performance
standard for YAS is to respond to 75% of patients with the most serious conditions within eight
minutes. YAS have continued to experience increased and unpredicted demand throughout
2016/17 and as such the 8 minute standard has not been achieved. The average achievement
as at February 2017 was 65.5%.
NHS Wakefield CCG, as collaborative contract lead for the YAS emergency response contract,
continues to work with the YAS to ensure that the service commissioned is in line with the
requirements of the NHS Constitution. YAS also continues to participate in the NHS Englandled Ambulance Response Programme, which went live in October 2016. They are one of two
ambulance services nationally to be involved in the trial.
Since November 2016 the percentage of ambulance handovers taking place within 15 minutes
has significantly improved at Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust (from 70.5% in November to
85.9% in March). This has enabled ambulances to get back on the road quicker to respond to
calls.
Mixed sex accommodation breaches
There have been no mixed sex accommodation breaches for patients in services
commissioned by the CCG.
Cancer
Cancer services commissioned by the CCG are required to meet certain standards. These
include the requirement that patients wait no longer than two weeks to see a consultant from
GP referral for suspected cancer, and will wait no longer than 31 days from diagnosis to
treatment and no longer than 62 days from referral to first treatment.
The CCG has worked consistently with local Trusts to ensure that all cancer standards are
met. Performance has shown signs of improvement throughout 2016/17 and there is a plan to
meet all standards by March 2017.
Mental health
The CCG is committed to commissioning high quality care for people with mental health
problems and there have been some significant improvements during the year as a result of
investment.
Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT)
NHS Wakefield CCG successfully re-procured our IAPT service during 2016/17 and the new
contract began on 1st September 2016. The new model reflects best practice and responds to
the feedback we received from service users and members of the public. In line with NHS
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England, we have developed an outcome based contract which incentivises the provider of the
service to focus on the things that matter to our local population:
 quick access
 a quality intervention
 a good experience.
Since the start of the new IAPT contract, there has been a marked improvement in the number
of people that are being supported to access treatment. We are currently developing plans to
increase our IAPT activity in line with Five Year Forward View requirements, and are working
with our GP colleagues to evaluate the impact of having therapists based in GP practices.
Early intervention in psychosis (EIP)
We have exceeded the national standard for EIP with 75% of people starting package of care
that meets the standard set by the National institute of Care Excellence (NICE) within 2 weeks
of referral during 2016/17. Recent research has identified priorities for the coming year with
regard to workforce development and we are developing plans with the Trust to ensure we
have a “good” overall quality assessment by 2020.
Out of area placement (out of Wakefield district)
There has been an increased need for people to go out of the district to receive mental health
inpatient care during 2016/17. This was due to a number of factors including recruitment
issues, increased demand, and a fire affecting local inpatient services. To address this, South
West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust has successfully recruited newly qualified
mental health nurses to increase capacity on the wards, and has opened alternative beds on
the Fieldhead Hospital site. Longer term, the new £16m inpatient facility is progressing well
and on track to open later this year.
Psychiatric Liaison Service
The service has been in operation since October 2014. The service provides mental health
professionals who are based at Pinderfields, Pontefract and Dewsbury Hospitals to support
people experiencing mental health problems in A&E or on the inpatient wards.
An analysis against the NHS national standard for psychiatric liaison, known as Core 24,
highlighted two areas for development; specialist Band 7 nurses and clear protocols for
working with other teams. These are going to be addressed through the use of NHS England
Transformation monies in 2017/18. The service sees on average 300 people per month across
three hospital sites. More than 95% are seen in A&E within 1 hour or within 24 hours on the
ward.
Dementia
Our diagnosis rate has remained constant throughout the year at 67% and we have been
working with Primary Care colleagues to promote the value of early diagnosis and to support
them to become Dementia Friendly organisations.
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My NHS: NHS Wakefield CCG:
My NHS contains data details the Public Health Outcomes Framework (PHOF). The data
details how well public health is being improved and protected. Below is a summary of the
latest data for Wakefield and district. Please visit https://www.nhs.uk/servicesearch/Performance/Search to see the full data range.
The Quality of Leadership indicator below refers to Quarter 2 of 2016/17 which is the latest
published rating. However, the year end results for the Quality of Leadership Indicator will be
available from July 2017 at www.nhs.uk/service-search/scorecard/results/1175.
The CCG is well-Led:
Staff Engagement
Progress against
Index
workforce race equality
standard
3.54 (engagement
0.20 (higher scores indicate
index on a 1-5 scale higher differences, 0
with 5 being good)
indicates equality)
Sustainability of the CCG:
Financial Digital interactions between
Plan
primary & secondary care
Green
56%

Effectiveness of
working relationships
in the local system
71.1% (score based on
a 55.2% response rate)

Local strategic
estates plan in place
In place

Better Care -Urgent and Emergency Care:
Emergency
% of patients
Delayed
admissions for
admitted,
transfers of
urgent care
transferred or
care per
sensitive
discharged from
100,000
conditions
A&E within 4 hours
population
2840 emergency
77.9%
13.16
admissions per
100,000 population
Better Care: Primary Medical Care:

Quality of
CCG
Leadership
Green

Probity and
corporate
governance
Fully compliant

Local Digital Roadmap in place
Yes, CCG is a member of a footprint that
has an approved Local Digital Roadmap

Population use of
hospital beds
following
emergency
admission
0.97 days per 1,000
population

Delivery of an
integrated Urgent
Care Service

4 of the 8 key
elements delivered

Management of Long
term Conditions

Patient Experience of
GP services

General Practice
extended access

Primary Care Workforce

931 emergency conditions
per 100,000 population

86.3% of people rated
their experience as good

22.5% offering full
provision

1.09 fte per 1000 weighted
patients

Better Care: Continuing Healthcare:
People eligible for standard NHS continuing
healthcare
52.8 eligible per 50,000 population
Better Care: Mental Health:
Initial
Improving
Assessment: access to
Mental
Psychologica
Health
l Therapies
recovery rate
Performing
Well

27 | P a g e

52.8%

People with 1st
episode of
psychosis starting
NICE recommended
treatment within 2
weeks of referral
84.6%

Children and
Young
People’s
mental health
services transformation
95.00%

Crisis Care
and Liaison
Mental Health
Services –
Transformatio
n
72.5%

Out of Area
placements for
acute mental
health inpatient
care –
transformation
37.5%

Better Care – Maternity:
Initial Assessment Neonatal mortality
maternity
and stillbirths

Women’s experience
of maternity services

Choices in maternity
services

Needs Improvement

81.1

66.7

6.3

Better Care -Learning Disabilities:
Initial Assessment –
Reliance on specialist inpatient
Learning Disabilities
care for people with a learning
disability and/or autism
Needs Improvement
54 per million registered population

Proportion of people with a learning
disability on the GP register receiving
an annual health check
38%

Better Care - Elective Access:
Patients waiting 18 weeks or less from referral to
hospital treatment
83.2%
Better Care –Dementia:
Initial Assessment –
Estimated diagnosis rate for
Dementia
people with dementia
Needs Improvement
69.7%

Dementia care planning and postdiagnostic support
78.5%

Better Health – Carers
Quality of life of carers
0.77
Better Care – Cancer:
Initial
Cancers
Assessment – diagnosed at
Cancer
early stage
Needs
51.4%
Improvement

People with urgent GP referral
having 1st definitive treatment for
cancer within 62 days of referral
77.1%

One-year
survival from
all cancers
68.6%

Cancer patient
experience
8.7

Better Health: Anti-microbial Resistance:
Anti-microbial resistance: Appropriate
prescribing of antibiotics in primary care
1.187

Anti-microbial resistance: Appropriate prescribing of
broad spectrum antibiotics in primary care
6.3%

Better Health: Health Inequalities
Inequality in avoidable emergency
admissions
An absolute gradient of 1022 on an underlying
CCG mean value of 918. The CCG is similar to
the average for other CCGs.

Inequality in unplanned hospitalisation for chronic
ambulatory care sensitive conditions
An absolute gradient of 2214 on an underlying CCG mean
value of 2821. The CCG is similar to the average for other
CCGs.

Better Health: Personalisation and Choice
Utilisation of the NHS ePersonal Health
referral service to enable
Budgets
choice at first routine elective
referral
56.9% (below target of 80%)
9.3 per 100,000
population
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% of deaths
which take place
in hospital

People with long term
condition feeling supported to
manage their conditions

47.6%

62.6%

Better Health: Falls
Injuries from falls in people aged 65 and over
2069 falls per 100,000 population
Better Health: Diabetes
Initial Assessment –
Diabetes
Top Performing

Diabetes patients that have
achieved all the NICE
recommended treatment targets
41.0% (85% participation in the
NDA)

People with diabetes diagnosed less
than a year who attended a structured
education course
12.4% (85% participation in the NDA)

Better Health: Child Obesity
% of children aged 10-11 classified as overweight
or obese
33.4%
Better Health: Maternal Smoking at Delivery
Maternal Smoking at Delivery
20.8% of 1000 mothers smoked at delivery

For technical detail around the construction and purpose of each of the indicators in the
framework, as outlined above, please see here.

Service Reviews
The following planned care services, which are procured by NHS Wakefield CCG, had
contracts which came to an end or new contracts put in place in 2016/17:
 A review of the termination of pregnancy: service was conducted and recommendations
were agreed by Clinical Cabinet (a committee which includes GP representatives). A
Voluntary Ex-Ante Transparency notice (VEAT) was undertaken to determine if there
was any interest from additional providers (no responses). New contracts are currently
being finalised with existing providers
 A service review of enhanced optometry service was conducted and a procurement
process is underway to find a suitable provider
 The CCG intends to continue with the current provider for prostatic clinics
 The ring pessary service has been continued
 The bereavement service falls under the scope of the end of life strategic review, which
is currently underway. There is an intention to continue the service pending a full
strategic report.
 The dizziness service forms part of the current review and planned redesign of
neurology services. It has been agreed to continue the service
 The community TB service has been continued for 12 months. A service review will be
conducted in 2017/18, including alignment of the service specification and budget
against national service expectations. Re-procurement is planned following the review.
 A new community MSK (musculoskeletal disorders): service was put in from October
2016, following extensive review of MSK & Community Orthopaedic services
 A new community nurse-led micro-suction service was put in place from October 2016,
following a service review 2015/16
 A review and re-procurement of the community cataract service has been undertaken :
service review and re-procurement
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A number of community consultant-led services have been continued in 2016/17:
 Community consultant-led Urology
 Community consultant-led Gynaecology
 Community consultant-led ENT.

Additionally there were a number of primary care enhanced services which have been
reviewed and re-contracted with GP practices in 2016/17:
 The diabetes management in primary care contract has been redesigned with input from
public health specialists to incorporate identification of patients at high risk of diabetes;
referral to the national diabetes prevention service; achievement of the three NICE
diabetes treatment targets and review of prescribing areas highlighted by CCG level
Right Care data
 The contract for prostate cancer shared care has undergone clinical review following a
formal evaluation
 The contract for IUS Mirena for menorrhagia will continue to be delivered by practices in
order to provide patient choice
 The anti-coagulant monitoring contract is being revised as part of a wider review of
anticoagulation services based on a comprehensive and effective model used in a
neighbouring CCG
 The shared care monitoring of amber drugs contract has been substantially revised to
extend the scope from just Disease Modifying Anti Rheumatic Drugs (DMARDS) to
encompass all drugs included in the Area Prescribing Committee amber list to eliminate
inequalities in access, improve cost effectiveness and transfer resources to general
practice to fund the additional activity.

Sustainability
The Sustainable Development Unit (SDU) guidance for Clinical Commissioning Groups
advises that the future challenges in healthcare are due to a less healthy ageing population;
public sector budgetary constraints; diminishing global resources and a changing and
challenging global climate. This means for the NHS Wakefield CCG that the key focus is to
design and contract services, which drive efficiency and influence sustainability across the
supply chain.
This aligns with national expectations of the NHS Constitution, Public Health Outcomes
Framework, Public Service (Social Value) Act 2012, NHS Standard Contract (Clause 18) and
of the Care Quality Commission (CQC).
As a part of the NHS, public health and social care system, it is our duty to contribute towards
the ambition set in 2014 to reduce the carbon footprint of the NHS, public health and social
care system.
During 2016/17 we have continued to support our sustainability initiatives:
 All new staff are advised of all recycling initiatives in the CCGs HQ building when
completing their building induction walk about
 We have increased our telephone conferencing function, further reducing the need to
travel off-site to attend meetings
 We offer staff a cycle to work scheme which is tax free through salary sacrifice
 We continue to use paper bags for the collection and disposal of paper waste and
confidential waste
 We continue to recycle plastic, glass and used batteries in the CCG’s HQ building.
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Supporting of the NHS Sustainability Day in March 2017, an information stand was put
up in the CCG’s HQ building. A pledge poster was circulated amongst teams asking
them to record what sustainable action they will take for the next year
Posters encouraging staff to switch off equipment and to use the stairs instead of the lift
has been placed around the building and is continually refreshed
Staff are encouraged and advised on how to use mobile devices for taking
documentation off-site in electronic form rather than paper form
The CCG’s Staff Forum continues to organise staff events, promoting local businesses,
local produce, healthy lifestyle choices and local events. Partner organisations are also
invited to these events.

Medicines Waste Strategy
Nationally, as much as £300million is wasted every year on
unused or partially used medicines. Over £3million pounds of
this is prescribed and dispensed in Wakefield district alone.
Our plan to address this locally has included:
 A redesign of the repeat prescription ordering process
 Reviewing repeat prescribing processes in GP
practices and providing education and support to
practice staff
 Providing practices, pharmacies and local community
centres with tools to increase patient awareness by
highlighting the main risks associated with: stockpiling
unnecessary medicines, not checking expiry dates,
sharing medicines, over ordering medicines “just in
case” and disposing of waste medicines correctly.
Throughout this strategy we have engaged extensively with the public by attending patient
representative groups in GP practices and other social groups in the community. Through
working with patients we will reduce unnecessary costs, which will free up money that will be
reinvested in to other local healthcare needs.

Quality Improvement
The programmes of work described throughout this report, highlight how the work undertaken
by the CCG has improved patient care and outcomes. Details of these can be found in the
Performance section of this report. .
However during the year there has been a worsening performance against constitutional
targets and some patient safety concerns at our local acute Trust, The Mid Yorkshire Hospitals
NHS Trust. We worked in partnership with NHS England, NHS Improvement, the CQC and the
Trust and agreed to establish an Executive Improvement Board, to collectively agree key
priorities for improvement and reduce duplication for the Trust. The first meeting was in
October 2016, with agreement to focus on five areas – three NHS constitutional targets –
Referral to Treatment/ 18 weeks, A&E 4 hour, and Cancer 62 day; plus mortality and medical
staffing. Existing groups review and monitor the specific improvement plans for these areas,
and provide a view to the Executive Improvement Board on progress to meet the required
standards and recover the position.
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As an organisation we take an integrated approach to quality, performance and finance which
is reported at our Governing Body, the detail of which is over seen by our Integrated
Governance Committee.

Reducing health inequality
Equality and diversity is a priority for the CCG when planning and commissioning local
healthcare. We work closely with local communities to understand their needs and how best to
commission the most appropriate services to meet those needs. We are guided by our
Equality, Diversity and Human Rights Strategy to ensure that all activity puts equality at the
heart of all that we do as commissioners and employers.
We have agreed the following equality objectives for the period of 2013-2017:
 Increasing screening rates for cervical and bowel cancer screening
 Ensuring access to local health provision for EU citizens and improving the experience
and confidence of the transgender community
 Enhancing member practice engagement
 Improving data quality and intelligence gathering and analysis to inform evidence based
commissioning and service improvement.
Our equality team hosted by NHS Calderdale CCG provides the CCG with equality expertise,
guidance and support to lead the equality agenda, and ensures the CCG complies with its
legal duties and commitments.
All staff and Governing Body members are aware of their responsibility to complete mandatory
training, which includes equality and diversity elements. This supports the CCG to fully
consider equality and diversity in its delivery of commissioning, as employers and in its
strategic planning.

Health Inequalities
To fulfil its legal duties a CCG needs to set out in its annual commissioning plan an explanation
of how it proposes to discharge its duty to have regard to the need to reduce inequalities. The
CCG also has to publish an annual report which includes an assessment of how effectively it
discharged its duty to have regard to the need to reduce inequalities.
CCGs have duties to:
 Exercise their functions with a view to securing health services that are provided in an
integrated way, and are integrated with health-related and social care services, where
they consider that this would improve quality, reduce inequalities in access to those
services or reduce inequalities in the outcomes achieved (s.14Z1)
 Include in an annual commissioning plan an explanation of how they propose to
discharge their duty to have regard to the need to reduce inequalities (s. 14Z11)
 Include in an annual report an assessment of how effectively they discharged their duty
to have regard to the need to reduce inequalities (s. 14Z15).
For details about the Health and Social Care Act please see here
CCGs should consistently have regard to the need to reduce inequalities when exercising their
functions. This is likely to require considering:
 The impact on inequalities as part of all decision making processes, and keeping a
record of such processes
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Which dimensions of inequality are relevant to their work, and taking account of how
inequalities could be reduced strategically, the potential impact on health inequalities
and the application of the duty to their functions.

CCGs have a duty to have regard to the need to reduce inequalities between patients in
access to services that they commission. This involves:
 Knowing the local population and local needs, commissioning through the use of joint
strategic needs assessments (JSNAs) and additional supporting data and evidence,
such as local health profiles and qualitative sources
 Identifying the local health inequalities and commissioning for all of the population in the
area, not just relying on General Practice registrations
 Identifying evidence of what has previously worked in reducing inequalities and
evaluating good practice, whilst also considering the ‘clustering’ of risk factors in some
groups. Universal services should aim to reduce inequalities by being progressively
aimed at those who need them the most
 Carrying out evidence-based service reviews.
This requires considering whether:
 Services are universal and should reach all members of society, which may be achieved
by explicitly targeting specific population groups
 Services are commissioned on the basis of need, which may be achieved by ensuring
the quantity and quality of services in deprived areas is adequate.
CCGs also have a duty to have regard to the need to reduce inequalities between patients in
outcomes from services they commission. This involves:
 Effective monitoring and evaluation that identifies health inequalities and to support
action to overcome inappropriate variations in outcomes for all people
 Looking at how the outcome is distributed across society by area of deprivation and by
different groups, rather than focusing on average outcomes for all people
 Considering how services can be commissioned to reduce inequalities and prevent
undesirable outcomes. For example, targeting lifestyle factors in health and compliance
with treatment, and developing key provider indicators with health inequality outcomes.
Equality delivery system
We have implemented the Equality Delivery System (EDS2) as an equality performance
framework to engage local stakeholders and staff to better understand our current position in
discharging our statutory duties, as enshrined in the Equality Act 2010.
The CCG publishes an annual equality report identifying the data and information it has used
about local communities and protected groups to inform decision making.

Summary of financial performance
The CCG planned to deliver a surplus of £5.9m, with a further national risk reserve held of 1%
(£5.4m) only to release in accordance with national guidance.
As set out in the 2016/17 NHS Planning Guidance, CCGs were required to hold a 1 percent
reserve uncommitted from the start of the year, created by setting aside the monies that CCGs
were otherwise required to spend non-recurrently. This was intended to be released for
investment in Five Year Forward View transformation priorities to the extent that evidence
emerged of risks not arising or being effectively mitigated through other means.
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In the event, the national position across the provider sector has been such that NHS England
has been unable to allow CCGs’ 1% non-recurrent monies to be spent. Therefore, to comply
with this requirement, NHS Wakefield CCG has released its 1% reserve to the bottom line,
resulting in an additional surplus for the year of £5.4m. This additional surplus has been offset
against other cost pressures from the current financial year.
During the year, the CCG worked with Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust to both manage the
financial consequences of the final year of the Meeting The Challenge hospital reorganisation
programme in terms of legacy costs and transition costs; and, where possible, reduce costs to
the health system overall across the Trust, NHS Wakefield CCG and NHS North Kirklees CCG.
This risk remained a key discussion point throughout the year, resulting in all parties entering
an arbitration process in January 2017 to establish which parts of the health system should
report the impact.
In February 2017, the arbitration process concluded with NHS Wakefield CCG and NHS North
Kirklees CCG being liable for the costs. NHS Wakefield CCG therefore incurred a cost of
£5.4m which resulted in an off-plan position.
There has been a continued focus on the financial pressures of the NHS and the CCG during
the year and a continued drive to deliver efficiencies, reduce waste and live within our financial
envelope.
It has taken a great deal of effort to deliver the financial position reported in these accounts
and to minimise the impact on services and service partners.
The CCG has driven efficiency improvements through a Quality, Innovation, Productivity and
Prevention (QIPP) programme which, in addition to maintaining internal controls and managing
emerging risks, has identified where efficiencies can be delivered for current and future years.
It has been an ambitious QIPP programme during the year which will continue in to next year.
The Chief Finance Officer commentary describes the highlights of the accounts this year and
the strategic approach to responding to the ongoing financial challenges.
The CCGs overall financial performance was monitored and managed on a regular basis by
the Executive Team.
The final year end out-turn was a surplus of £5.9m after the release of the 1% risk reserve.
The financial performance note of the accounts (Note 21) records achievement of key
requirements being:
 Expenditure did not exceed income
 The CCG delivered its recovery position in accordance with the reserve allocation
 The CCG delivered against its capital reserve
 The running costs allocation was not exceeded.

Jo Webster
Accountable Officer
25 May 2017
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Accountability Report
The Accountability Report contains three sections detailed in the following pages:
1. Corporate Governance Report
2. A Remuneration and Staff Report
3. Audit Report.

Jo Webster
Accountable Officer
25 May 2017
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Corporate Governance Report
Members report
The composition of the Management Board (The Executive Team) in 2016/17
Melanie Brown: Programme Commissioning Director: Integrated Care
Dr Greg Conner: Executive Clinical Adviser
Simon Dale: Associate Director: Strategy (1st January 2017 - 30th June 2017)
Dr Phil Earnshaw: Chair of the CCG
Michele Ezro: Associate Director: Commissioning and Integration
Pat Keane: Deputy Chief Officer/ Chief Operating Officer
Karen Parkin: Associate Director: Finance, Contracting and Governance
Andrew Pepper: Chief Finance Officer
Jo Pollard: Chief of Service Delivery and Quality
Dr Adam Sheppard: Urgent Care Lead/ Assistant Clinical Chair
Jo Webster: Chief Officer.
All members of the Governing Body are detailed on page 82 of this report.
Committees
In addition to the Board of the Governing Body, there are seven committees through
which the CCG discharges its responsibilities.








Audit Committee
Clinical Cabinet
Integrated Governance Committee
Nominations Committee
Probity Committee
Remuneration Committee
Connecting Care Executive.

Details of the role of these committees can be found in the Annual Governance
Statement.

Network Overview
Wakefield district has an estimated population of around 333,759. There are 367,370
people registered with GP practices in the district, which includes some patients who
are registered with GP practices within the district but live outside the Wakefield
district boundary. Serving this population are 40 GP practices, this reduced to 38 at
the end of 2017 with the closure of one practice and the merger of two others.
Wakefield has a strong primary care history, and local GPs have capitalised on this
through forming into clinical networks. Currently, there are six networks across
Wakefield. Our membership structure and network map and list are detailed on the
following pages.
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Networks are central to our membership model, providing a foundation of effective
relationships, and all our practices are actively working together through their local
network to support each other in achieving better health outcomes for patients.
Networks provide a forum where all practices can take ownership, contribute to and
influence local network and district -wide commissioning plans, ensuring
consistency, shared learning and innovation. We believe that this is vital to maintain
a strong and purposeful emphasis on enhancing general practice capacity and
capability. Understanding referral and prescribing patterns and decisions and sharing
best practice in and across primary care are crucial to the success of the CCG.

Our member practices
For details of the breakdown and position of each of our GP networks/ federations
and practice locations, please see the network map and key page 39.
Each network is based around a geographical area and is tasked with looking at the
needs of their local population. This ensures GPs, nurses and other practice staff,
along with social workers, public health experts, voluntary and community sector
representatives are working together on the issues they have identified as making
the most difference to their area.
In 2015/16, all GP practices signed up to a Network Development Framework (NDF)
developed locally, in conjunction with all members. The NDF sets targets for
additional patient contacts over and above the core requirement, and for the
achievement of targets which will improve the care of local patients. Each network
has also identified a public health need specific to their locality. At the end of the
year, all practices were actively participating in the NDF, with excellent performance
against all the targets.
The networks formally link into our Clinical Cabinet, a key committee, which reports
directly to the CCG’s Governing Body. The overarching purpose of the Clinical
Cabinet is to provide strong clinical leadership and practice engagement for service
changes and development of commissioning plans. It is made up of clinicians who
have day-to-day contact with patients and in this way it not only provides robust
assurance to the CCG, but it also means that there are only two steps between the
patient and the Governing Body.
Understanding referral and prescribing patterns and decisions and sharing best
practice in and across primary care are crucial to the success of the CCG.
Throughout the year, the following successes and key areas of work have been
undertaken by the network areas:
 Dementia friendly; all Wakefield practices have now undertaken Dementia
Friends training
 Sensory Impairment friendly; all Wakefield practices have achieved Sensory
Impairment Friendly status
 Young People friendly; all practices within Wakefield are now approved as
being young people friendly by Wakefield Youth Association, and have
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received plaques for their surgery walls to demonstrate this achievement to
their patients
Network Patient Representation Groups; all Networks now have Network
Patient Reference Groups and are starting to meet on a quarterly basis. So
far groups have found out more about patient access, GP Forward View and
the Urgent Care Model
Peer Review Target; all Networks have participated in two or more peer
reviews looking at clinical cases in different health needs
E Consultation; all Networks have worked towards achieving the goal of
completing 12 E-consultations per 1,000 patient population by end of April
2017. Final figures have yet to be received from MYHT
Thirty-nine out of the 40 practices reviewed patients on the Mid Yorkshire
Hospitals NHS Trust waiting list for four specialties (trauma and orthopaedics,
dermatology, ear, nose and throat, gastroenterology), to determine if their
treatment could be followed up in Primary Care
All practices have reviewed pathology data and discussed this in Network
meetings to look at areas that can be focused on
Thirty-nine out of the 40 practices have carried out an audit on GLP-1
injections for patients with diabetes
Networks 1 and 2 have started looking at pathology testing, and comparing
this to available up-to-date guidance to determine best practice. Wakefield
West Health and Wellbeing Federation were successful in their bid for the
Local Authority Health Checks Programme
Extended access models across Networks 3, 5 & 6 have continued
throughout 2016/17, improving patient access across West Wakefield and
delivering excellent patient outcomes.

Positive Developments
Practices have had access to a number of funds in 2016/17 including:
 Transition Fund
 Vulnerable Practice Fund
 GP Resilience Programme
 Estates and Technology Transformation Fund.
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The map below details the location of
the GP networks, federations and
practices within each.
The numbers correspond to the GP
practice list on the next page
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Member Practices and location key

Map ID

40 | P a g e

Practice

Amendments

1

RIVERSIDE MEDICAL CENTRE

2

HENRY MOORE CLINIC

3

TIEVE TARA MEDICAL CENTRE

4

STATION LANE MEDICAL CENTRE

5

St. THOMAS ROAD

6

NEWLAND LANE SURGERY

7

NORTHGATE SURGERY

8

STUART ROAD SURGERY

9

ASH GROVE SURGERY

10

FRIARWOOD SURGERY

11

COLLEGE LANE SURGERY

12

THE GRANGE SURGERY

13

Dr SINGH AND PARTNERS

Part of Church View Health Centre

14

Drs DIGGLE & PHILLIPS

Part of Church View Health Centre

15

WHITE ROSE SURGERY

16

STANLEY HEALTH CENTRE

17

OUTWOOD PARK MEDICAL CENTRE

18

NEW SOUTHGATE SURGERY

19

HOMESTEAD CLINIC

20

ALVERTHORPE SURGERY

21

PATIENCE LANE SURGERY

22

KINGS MEDICAL PRACTICE

23

QUEEN STREET SURGERY

24

PARK VIEW SURGERY

25

CASTLEFORD MEDICAL PRACTICE

26

ELIZABETH COURT

27

FERRYBRIDGE MEDICAL CENTRE

28

KING STREET HEALTH CENTRE

29

WARRENGATE MEDICAL CENTRE

30

EASTMOOR HEALTH CENTRE

31

ALMSHOUSE SURGERY

32

THE GROVE SURGERY

33
34

MAYBUSH MEDICAL CENTRE
CROFTON & SHARLSTON HEALTH
CENTRE

35

CHURCH STREET SURGERY

36

PROSPECT SURGERY

37

LUPSET HEALTH CENTRE

38

ORCHARD CROFT MEDICAL CENTRE

39

MIDDLESTOWN MEDICAL CENTRE

40

CHAPELTHORPE MEDICAL CENTRE

Closed 31/3/2017

Merged with Almshouse Surgery
1/4/2017

Conflicts of Interest
There is a high likelihood of conflicts of interest occurring in commissioning and it is
important that these are managed effectively. As a membership organisation
management of conflicts of interest is part of our day-to-day activities. Further details
about the measures we have put in place to manage conflicts of interest are
available in the governance statement.
The CCG's register of interest is available on the CCGs website (click here).

Personal data related incidents
There have been no Serious Untoward Incidents relating to data security
breaches. The governance statement provides further information about the
measure the CCG has implements to ensure data security.

Statement of Disclosure to Auditors
Each individual who is a member of the CCG at the time the Members’ Report is
approved confirms:

So far as the member is aware, there is no relevant audit information of
which the CCG’s auditor is unaware that would be relevant for the
purposes of their audit report

The member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken in order
to make him or herself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the CCG’s auditor is aware of it.
Modern Slavery Act
NHS Wakefield Clinical Commissioning Group fully supports the Government’s
objectives to eradicate modern slavery and human trafficking but does not meet the
requirements for producing an annual Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement as
set out in the Modern Slavery Act 2015.

Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities
The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each Clinical
Commissioning Group shall have an Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be
appointed by the NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England). NHS England has
appointed Mrs Joanne Webster to be the Accountable Officer of NHS Wakefield
Clinical Commissioning Group.
The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer are set out under the National Health
Service Act 2006 (as amended), Managing Public Money and in the Clinical
Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. They include
responsibilities for:
 The propriety and regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable
Officer is answerable
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For keeping proper accounting records (which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Clinical Commissioning
Group and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the
requirements of the Accounts Direction)
For safeguarding the Clinical Commissioning Group’s assets (and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities)
The relevant responsibilities of accounting officers under Managing Public
Money
Ensuring the CCG exercises its functions effectively, efficiently and
economically (in accordance with Section 14Q of the National Health Service
Act 2006 (as amended)) and with a view to securing continuous improvement
in the quality of services (in accordance with Section14R of the National
Health Service Act 2006 (as amended)
Ensuring that the CCG complies with its financial duties under Sections 223H
to 223J of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended).

Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHS England has
directed each Clinical Commissioning Group to prepare for each financial year
financial statements in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction.
The financial statements are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Clinical Commissioning Group and of its net
expenditure, changes in taxpayers’ equity and cash flows for the financial year.
In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is required to comply
with the requirements of the Group Accounting Manual issued by the Department of
Health and in particular to:

Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England, including the
relevant accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable
accounting policies on a consistent basis

Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis

State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Group
Accounting Manual issued by the Department of Health have been
followed, and disclose and explain any material departures in the financial
statements

Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the
responsibilities set out under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended),
Managing Public Money and in my Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable
Officer Appointment Letter.
I also confirm that:

as far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
CCG’s auditors are unaware, and that as Accountable Officer, I have
taken all the steps that I ought to have taken to make myself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the CCG’s auditors are
aware of that information
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that the annual report and accounts as a whole is fair, balanced and
understandable and that I take personal responsibility for the annual
report and accounts and the judgments required for determining that it is
fair, balanced and understandable.

Governance Statement 2016/17
Introduction and context
NHS Wakefield Clinical Commissioning Group is a body corporate established by
NHS England on 1 April 2013 under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as
amended).
The Clinical Commissioning Group’s (CCG’s) statutory functions are set out under
the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended). The CCG’s general function is
arranging the provision of services for persons for the purposes of the health service
in England. The CCG is, in particular, required to arrange for the provision of certain
health services to such extent as it considers necessary to meet the reasonable
requirements of its local population.
As at 1 April 2016, the CCG is not subject to any directions from NHS England
issued under Section 14Z21 of the National Health Service Act 2006.
The CCG was created as a district wide CCG (with six localities) and geography
coterminous with our Local Authority, Wakefield Metropolitan District Council. The
CCG is a forward thinking organisation which is at the forefront of the development
of many leading pieces of work which are transforming healthcare and will deliver
excellent services. We are committed to commissioning quality services that will
improve local patients’ experiences of care and their health outcomes for the people
of Wakefield, and robust governance is essential to achieving that aim.
Scope of responsibility
As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of
internal control that supports the achievement of the CCG’s policies, aims and
objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which I am personally
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me in Managing
Public Money. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out under the National
Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) and in my Clinical Commissioning Group
Accountable Officer Appointment Letter.
I am responsible for ensuring that the CCG is administered prudently and
economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively, safeguarding
financial propriety and regularity. I also have responsibility for reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of internal control within the CCG as set out in this
governance statement.
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Governance arrangements and effectiveness
The main function of the Governing Body is to ensure that the group has made
appropriate arrangements for ensuring that it exercises its functions effectively,
efficiently and economically and complies with such generally accepted principles of
good governance as are relevant to it.
The Constitution
The CCG is a membership organisation comprising 40 member practices during
2016/17 (please note, from 1 April 2017 there are 38 member practices). The CCG’s
constitution has been adopted by the members, it was last reviewed in January
2015. It sets out the powers and functions of the CCG and describes the
organisations governance framework. This includes the governing principles, rules
and procedures that the group has established to ensure probity and accountability.
The constitution includes
 Membership and the area we cover
 Purpose of the CCG; functions, general duties and powers
 Decision making; the governing structure – including Scheme of Reservation and
Delegation
 Committees and joint committees
 Composition of the Governing Body and its responsibilities
 Standards of business conduct and arrangements to manage conflicts of interest
 Transparency, Ways of Working and Standing Orders.
The constitution outlines the arrangements made by the CCG for discharge of
functions by the Governing Body. It makes clear the role and responsibilities, and
authority delegated, to the members, the Governing Body, committees and
employees.
The Governing Body
All CCGs are required to have a governing body which provides challenge and
assurance that the organisation’s accountabilities are being effectively met.
Name
Role
Andrew Balchin
Corporate Director – Adults, Health &
Communities (Wakefield Council)
Dr Avijit Biswas (until 28 Feb 2017)
Dr David Brown

GP member
GP member

Dr Ann Carroll (until 31 May 2016)
Sandra Cheseldine
Dr Phillip Earnshaw
Sharon Fox (until 31 Jan 2017)
Dr Andrew Furber

GP member
Lay member (Audit)
Chair & Clinical Leader
Independent Nurse Member
Director of Public Health
Council)
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(Wakefield

Dr Debbie Hallott
Diane Hampshire (wef 1 March 2017)
Stephen Hardy
Dr Clive Harries
Richard Hindley (wef 1 March 2017)
Dr Pravin Jayakumar
Hany Lotfallah
Rhod Mitchell (until 28 Feb 2017)
Andrew Pepper
Jo Pollard
Dr Adam Sheppard
Alison Sugarman
Jo Webster

GP member
Independent Nurse Member
Lay member (Patient & Public Involvement)
GP member
Lay Member & Deputy Chair
GP member
Secondary care consultant
Lay Member & Deputy Chair
Chief Finance Officer
Chief of Service Delivery and Quality
Assistant Clinical Leader / GP member
Practice Manager member
Chief Officer

The composition of the Governing Body is compliant with the requirements of the
CCG’s constitution. During the year the CCG’s Chair and Clinical Leader was
reappointed by the members for a further three year term of office. In summer 2016
a GP (Dr Ann Carroll) retired from the Governing Body; despite a call for nominations
in May 2016 the post remains unfilled. In early 2017 the Nominations Committee
oversaw the appointment of a new Lay Member (Deputy Chair) and a new Nurse
Member. In addition, in February 2017 a GP member (Dr Avijit Biswas) retired from
the Governing Body.
The Governing Body met on seven occasions during the year 2016-17, all meetings
were quorate. Meetings were held in public and copies of the papers are available
on the CCG’s website (available here). In addition a ‘board to board’ meeting was
held with NHS North Kirklees CCG in July 2016 to discuss and agree commissioning
changes for Mid Yorkshire Hospitals Trust.
The Governing Body draw their membership from a broad pool of NHS staff,
clinicians and lay members, providing the appropriate balance of skills, experience,
independence and knowledge of the organisation to enable them to discharge their
respective duties and responsibilities effectively. All members of the Governing
Body have clear areas of responsibility. The Chair holds regular review meetings
and annual appraisals with members of the Governing Body to discuss their
contribution to the organisation.
A comprehensive development programme is in place for members of the Governing
Body. During 2016/17, in accordance the UK Corporate Governance Code this
included an independent 360 degree assessment. The assessment gathered
feedback from the Governing Body, staff and partner organisations. The final report
included analysis of leadership, management and governance. These were
considered by the Governing Body and an action plan addressing areas for
development was agreed and is being implemented.
Committees of the Governing Body
NHS Wakefield CCG uses a number of committees to provide challenge and
assurance over specific areas. All committees have been formed with a membership
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that provides a sufficient range of skills, including clinical expertise and lay
membership.
During 2016/17 the Governing Body was supported by seven sub-committees; Audit
Committee, Clinical Cabinet, Integrated Governance Committee, Nominations
Committee, Probity Committee, Remuneration Committee and Connecting Care
Executive. All the Committees are referenced within the NHS Wakefield CCG
Constitution and the terms of reference for these Committees were reviewed and
revised in November 2016.
Copies of all committee terms of reference are available on the CCG’s website at
(available here). Written and verbal assurance reports and minutes from the
Committees are provided to the Governing Body on a regular basis.

Committee Structure

NHS Wakefield Clinical Commissioning Group Governing Body

Probity Committee
(PRIMARY CARE)

Nominations
Committee
(Appointments to
Governing Body)

Integrated Governance
Committee (SYSTEMS)

Audit Committee
(ASSURANCE)

Clinical Cabinet
(COMMISSIONING
DECISION)

Connecting Care
Executive

Wakefield
Health and Well
Being Board

Remuneration
Committee

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee met on seven occasions during the year with the remit to
review and provide assurance on the adequacy and effective operation of the overall
internal control system for the CCG.
In May 2017 the Governing Body considered an annual report from the Audit
Committee (copy available here) which provided assurance the committee has
complied with its terms of reference and fulfilled its duties. The Audit Committee
fulfilled its duties by focusing on integrated governance, risk management, internal
control, financial reporting, internal audit, external audit, assurance on management,
whistleblowing, other assurance functions and counter fraud.
Clinical Cabinet
The Clinical Cabinet met monthly throughout the year, with the remit of:
 Providing strong clinical leadership for commissioning, service transformation and
pathway redesign and to provide robust assurance of this to the Governing Body.
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Including promotion of a culture of continuous improvement, innovation, safety,
clinical effectiveness and patient experience/feedback
Providing advice and assurance on agreed commissioning strategies and
intentions and strategic alignment with the forward strategy that is agreed for the
population of Wakefield by the Governing Body
Taking a lead in ensuring initiatives are in place to support the development of
Quality, Improvement, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) through embedding
clinical advice, support and leadership into key commissioning work streams and
interlinking portfolio working across the organisation.

Clinical Cabinet has established one sub-committee, the Medicines Optimisation
Group. Minutes of the Group’s meetings are regularly presented to Clinical Cabinet.
The Committee also received regular updates from the CCG’s membership (through
the six clinical networks).
In May 2017 the Governing Body considered an annual report from the Clinical
Cabinet (copy available here) which provided assurance that the committee has
complied with its terms of reference and fulfilled its duties.
Integrated Governance Committee
The Integrated Governance Committee met monthly throughout the year, with the
remit of:
 Ensuring that the CCG has robust systems in place to identify, manage and
report on key governance and quality issues and the risks associated with them
 Reviewing the CCG’s performance against its strategic and operational plans
 Being accountable for the performance and reporting of any groups, as delegated
by the Governing Body, ensuring all risks are appropriately managed and
reported within the risk management/assurance framework approach.
The Integrated Governance Committee has one standing sub group, the Quality
Intelligence Group. Minutes from the Quality Intelligence Group are shared with the
Committee on a regular basis. The terms of reference of the Quality Intelligence
Group were reviewed in February 2016 and no changes were deemed necessary.
In May 2017 the Governing Body considered an annual report from the Integrated
Governance Committee (copy available here) which provided assurance that the
committee has complied with its terms of reference and fulfilled its duties.
Nominations Committee
The Nominations Committee met on one occasion throughout the year, with the
remit of ensuring a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure for the appointment of
members to the Governing Body (including GPs, Practice Manager, Lay Members,
Secondary Care Consultant and Registered Nurse). On those occasions when the
committee will consider the appointment of GPs or the Practice Manager a
representative from the Local Medical Committee joins the committee.
In May 2017 the Governing Body considered an annual report from the Nominations
Committee (copy available here) which provided assurance that the committee has
complied with its terms of reference and fulfilled its duties. The committee fulfilled its
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duties by the reappointment of one Lay Member, a new Lay Member/Deputy Chair
appointment and the appointment of a new Governing Body Nurse Representative.
Probity Committee
The Probity Committee met on eight occasions throughout the year, with the remit of:
 Facilitating decision making about items which present conflicts of interest for all
or the majority of GP members of the Governing Body
 Carrying out the functions delegated to the CCG relating to the commissioning of
primary medical services.
In May 2017 the Governing Body considered an annual report from the Probity
Committee (copy available here) which provided assurance that the committee has
complied with its terms of reference and fulfilled its duties.
Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee have the remit to determine remuneration, fees and
other allowances for employees and for people who provide services to the group
not covered by Agenda for Change. The Committee has not met during the year.
Connecting Care Executive
The Connecting Care Executive is a joint committee with Wakefield Council. The
committee met monthly throughout the year, with the remit of:
 Acting as the Partnership Board responsible for review of performance and
oversight of the Better Care Fund. This includes undertaking the statutory
functions outlined in the Care Act 2014 and managing the implementation of the
Better Care Fund Plan and associated Section 75 Better Care Fund Partnership
Agreement
 Delivering the ambition of the Health and Wellbeing Board to achieve more
effective integration between the commissioning of children’s, adults’, public
health and NHS services.
In addition the Connecting Care Executive has taken a role in oversight of the
district’s two vanguard programmes.
The Connecting Care Executive has two standing sub groups; the Connecting Care
Health & Social Care Partnership and the Wakefield Partners Vanguard Delivery
Board.
In May 2017 the Governing Body considered an annual report from the Connecting
Care Executive (copy available here) which provided assurance that the committee
has complied with its terms of reference and fulfilled its duties.
Attendance at Governing Body and Committee meetings (as at 16 May 2017)
Governing
Body Member

Governing
Body

Audit
Committee

Integrated
Governance
Committee

Clinical
Cabinet

Connecting
Care
Executive

Probity
Committee

Andrew
Balchin
Dr Avijit

7 (8)

N/A

N/A

N/A

11 (14)

N/A

5 (7)

N/A

N/A

6 (11)

N/A

N/A
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Biswas (left
31/3/2017)
Melanie
Brown *
(joined
Probity
Committee
01/10/2016)
Dr David
Brown
Dr Ann
Carroll
(retired
31/05/2016)**
Sandra
Cheseldine
Dr Phil
Earnshaw
Sharon Fox
(retired
31/1/2017)
Dr Andrew
Furber
Dr Deborah
Hallott
Diane
Hampshire
(wef
01/03/2017)
Stephen
Hardy
Dr Clive
Harries
Richard
Hindley (with
effective from
01/03/2017)
Dr Pravin
Jayakumar
Pat Keane *
(left Probity
Committee
31/10/16)
Dr Hany
Lotfallah
Rhod Mitchell
(left
28/02/2017)
Andrew
Pepper***
Jo Pollard
Dr Adam
Sheppard
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7 (8)

N/A

N/A

N/A

13 (14)

2 (4)

4 (8)

N/A

10 (13)

11 (13)

N/A

N/A

0 (1)

N/A

N/A

1(2)

2 (2)

N/A

8 (8)

9 (9)

N/A

N/A

N/A

8 (9)

7 (8)

N/A

10 (13)

8 (13)

N/A

N/A

3 (5)

N/A

5 (9)

N/A

N/A

5 (7)

5 (8)

N/A

N/A

N/A

8 (14)

N/A

5 (8)

8 (9)

N/A

12 (13)

N/A

N/A

2 (2)

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

1(1)

7 (8)

N/A

9 (13)

10 (13)

N/A

6 (9)

5 (8)

5 (9)

N/A

10 (13)

N/A

N/A

2 (2)

N/A

2(2)

N/A

N/A

1(1)

7 (8)

N/A

11 (13)

10 (13)

N/A

N/A

6 (8)

N/A

4 (13)

N/A

N/A

1 (5)

8 (8)

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

3 (9)

4 (6)

7 (7)

7 (11)

N/A

N/A

6 (7)

8 (8)

7(9)

10 (13)

10 (13)

4 (14)

6 (9)

8 (8)
7 (8)

N/A
4 (9)

10 (13)
N/A

8 (13)
13 (13)

7 (14)
7 (14)

6 (9)
N/A

Alison
4 (8)
N/A
7 (13)
N/A
N/A
Sugarman
Jo Webster
5 (8)
N/A
4 (13)
N/A
6 (14)
NB Number in brackets is number of meetings held during 2016/17
* Non voting member
** In attendance as a Governing Body Member
*** In attendance at Audit Committee

N/A
1 (9)

All committee meetings held during the year were quorate. Attendance at meetings
is monitored by the chair of the committee and shared with the chair of the
Governing Body.
Joint Governance
During the year NHS Wakefield Clinical Commissioning Group has taken a lead role
in developing joint governance with other CCGs in Yorkshire. A forum has been
established to facilitate commissioning of ambulance services. The arrangements
are outlined in a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) which includes all CCGs
across Yorkshire and the Humber. The MOU includes a scheme of delegation;
authority has been delegated to me as the Wakefield CCG Chief Officer to make
decisions on behalf of the organisation.
CCGs across West Yorkshire and Harrogate agreed a Memorandum of
Understanding which established a collaborative forum intended to develop and
implement a Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) and improve decision
making processes. During the winter of 2016/17 CCGs across West Yorkshire and
Harrogate have agreed to develop this further; a joint commissioning committee of
CCGs will be established in May 2017. The committee will hold its meetings in
public. It will include representatives from every CCG, alongside two CCG lay
members and an independent lay chair. The MOU includes terms of reference for
the committee and a work-plan which clarifies the functions delegated to the joint
committee. This includes the commissioning of services detailed in the STP;
including stroke, cancer services, and some elements of urgent and emergency
care.
In addition the CCG is an associate member of ‘Commissioners Working Together’,
the collaborative commissioning arrangements for South Yorkshire.
In Wakefield the CCG has worked with partners to strengthen system assurance and
oversight, the Mid Yorkshire Oversight and Assurance Executive was established in
2016 and meets on a monthly basis. It includes partner organisations from across
the whole Mid Yorkshire system working to take ownership and drive the
development of resilience planning and transformational change in the delivery of
health and social care across the local Mid Yorkshire system, aligning organisational
priorities and plans to deliver the best possible outcomes for patients.
UK Corporate Governance Code
NHS Bodies are not required to comply with the UK Code of Corporate Governance.
However we have reported on our governance arrangements by drawing on best
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practice including those aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code we consider
to be relevant to the CCG.
Discharge of Statutory Functions
In light of recommendations of the 1983 Harris Review, the CCG has reviewed all of
the statutory duties and powers conferred on it by the National Health Service Act
2006 (as amended) and other associated legislation and regulations. As a result, I
can confirm that the CCG is clear about the legislative requirements associated with
each of the statutory functions for which it is responsible, including any restrictions
on delegation of those functions.
Responsibility for each duty and power has been clearly allocated to a lead Director.
Directorates have confirmed that their structures provide the necessary capability
and capacity to undertake all of the CCG’s statutory duties.
Risk management arrangements and effectiveness
The organisation has appropriate and effective systems in place to identify, report
and manage risk, which includes effective processes to capture and learn from
mistakes to reduce future risks. These arrangements for managing risk are outlined
within the ‘Integrated Risk Management Framework’. The framework was last
reviewed in May 2016. It includes provisions to regularly review risks on the risk
register, conduct root cause analysis on reported incidents, triangulate intelligence
from complaints, incidents and claims and collate information from external
organisations.
The CCG has developed risk management arrangements for key partnerships and
major projects including the Meeting the Challenge transformation review, vanguard
programmes and financial management which is reflected in the CCG risk register
and assurance framework.
Where possible the organisation has sought to minimise risk. Throughout 2016/17
NHS Wakefield CCG has demonstrated its commitment to the active management of
risk by continuing to develop and maintain a positive culture of risk management
throughout the organisation.
Strategic risks are defined as threats to the achievement of the long term strategic
aims of the organisation, taken from the strategic plan, and are recorded in the
Assurance Framework. Operational risks are identified by a bottom up risk
assessment process and recorded on the Risk Register.
The Governing Body Assurance Framework is a key tool in the assurance process
and internal control systems for the CCG. The Governing Body Assurance
Framework provides the Governing Body with two fold level of assurances:
 Identifies risks that could adversely impact upon the successful achievement of
the CCG’s strategic priorities, and that they are being managed and mitigated
 Demonstrates how the CCG is performing overall in managing the risks
associated with the delivery of each strategic priority.
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The Governing Body Assurance Framework is presented twice per year to the
Integrated Governance Committee, Audit Committee and the Governing Body. The
Assurance Framework details links with the corporate Risk Register.
Identification of Risk
NHS Wakefield CCG has identified risks during the year as outlined in the Integrated
Risk Management Framework following input from operational groups and formal
meetings.
The CCG has a robust process to identify incidents. Incidents reported during the
year included a variety of incident types, such as information governance and
building security issues. There were no incidents which required a report to, or an
investigation by, any external bodies.
Evaluation of Risk
Risk evaluation is a robust process which is governed by the Risk Management
Framework. This is undertaken by the Risk Owner, Senior Manager and Final
Reviewer (director level) and the Integrated Governance Committee and the
Governing Body in accordance with the relevance and severity of the risk as outlined
in the Risk Management Framework.
The Governing Body delegates responsibility for risk management to the Integrated
Governance Committee. It is responsible for determining the nature and extent of the
significant risks the CCG is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives.
Each risk was:
 Analysed to understand its potential impact
 Existing control measures were examined and consideration given to their
application and effectiveness
 Evaluated to decide if further actions are necessary other than control measures
 Scored in line with a 5 x 5 matrix which categorises the potential of any
outstanding risk after the above process.
Risk Prioritisation
NHS Wakefield CCG accepts that it is not possible to conduct business or develop
the healthcare for Wakefield residents without taking risks and identifies a risk
appetite.
Risk appetite can be defined as ‘the amount and type of risk that an organisation is
willing to take in order to meet their strategic objectives”. This is ensured for each
risk by selecting a target score. These are monitored at Integrated Governance
Committee quarterly to ensure consistency across the organisation.
For each risk or threat identified on the Assurance Framework the risk also had an
appetite score to indicate the level at which this threat to the achievement of the
organisations strategic objectives would be tolerated.
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Prevention of Risk
The prevailing culture within Wakefield CCG is very risk aware. All committee and
Governing Body papers carry a specific section within the executive summary page
to identify any and all risks arising from the area under discussion.
All policies and programmes are the subject of an integrated impact assessment
process which helps to identify and minimise risk.
Risk Assessment
The Risk Register
NHS Wakefield CCG had effective processes to capture and learn from mistakes
and reduce future risks, including a review of risks marked for closure on the Risk
Register. Operational risks are identified by a bottom up risk assessment process.
The Integrated Governance Committee reviewed the Risk Register on a quarterly
basis as part of each risk cycle following the review by the Final Reviewer. The
Governing Body considered the Risk Register twice following consideration by the
Integrated Governance Committee.
The CCG has established a range of CCG policies to support the management of
risk. These include the Integrated Risk Management Framework, Incident Reporting
Policy (incorporating the national Serious Incident Framework), Health and Safety
Policy, Complaints Policy, Claims Policy and Freedom to Speak Up Policy.
The risk profile considered at the Governing Body on 14 March 2017 is included
below:

The numbers in the circle are the risk identification numbers and their position on the
graph shows the risk score.
Risks are will be subject to action plans/controls and assurances in proportion to
their risk score:
 Black = Critical risks requiring urgent action
 Red = Serious risks requiring prompt action
 Yellow = High risks
 Green = Moderate risks
 Clear = Low risks which may require monitoring only.
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The final Risk Register considered at the Governing Body on 14 March 2017
included the following critical and serious risks. The report, including details of the
risks, controls and assurances can be found at (copy available here).
The Governing Body is responsible for providing clear commitment and direction for
risk management within the CCG. The Governing Body has established formal and
transparent arrangements for considering how it should apply the corporate reporting
and risk management and internal control principles and for maintaining an
appropriate relationship with internal audit. During 2016/17 it has maintained sound
risk management and internal control systems as described in the risk management
section of this statement.
Other sources of assurance
Internal Control Framework
A system of internal control is the set of processes and procedures in place in the
CCG to ensure it delivers its policies, aims and objectives. It is designed to identify
and prioritise the risks, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the
impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically.
The system of internal control allows risk to be managed to a reasonable level rather
than eliminating all risk; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness.
The adequacy of internal controls is monitored and assessed by the Governing Body
supported by the Audit Committee. There are a range of control measures in place
including the risk management framework, operating scheme of delegation, physical
controls, management controls, security controls, accounting controls, policies, and
mandatory training. In addition the CCG has developed innovative methods to
gather ‘intelligence’ these include the Quality Intelligence Group and patient safety
walkabouts. Collectively these controls reduce the likelihood of risk occurring.
In addition the Governing Body Assurance Framework (GBAF) is the key document
which provides an overview of the controls and assurances in place to ensure that
the CCG is able to achieve its strategic objectives and manage the principle risks
identified.
Annual audit of conflicts of interest management
The revised statutory guidance on managing conflicts of interest for CCGs
(published June 2016) requires CCGs to undertake an annual internal audit of
conflicts of interest management. To support CCGs to undertake this task, NHS
England has published a template audit framework.
The key changes in the revised guidance have been reflected in the CCG’s Conflicts
of Interest Policy which was approved in October 2016. The CCG has published a
register of interests to identify any conflicts of interest or any gifts or hospitality for all
members of the Governing Body, clinical leads and employees, this is available on
the CCG’s website (click here).
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Mechanisms to detect and report breaches will be administered and managed via
the governance team and Audit Committee. All breaches are anonymized and
published on the CCG’s website. In October 2016, one breach of the Joint Working
and Sponsorship Policy was detected, further information is available on the CCG’s
website (click here).
The CCG has established a Probity Committee which facilitates decision making
about items which present conflicts of interest for all or the majority of GP members
of the Governing Body. Further details about this committee are detailed earlier in
this governance statement.
An internal audit regarding conflicts of interest took place in March 2017 with a
finding of ‘significant assurance’. This identified that the CCG has put in place
arrangements to manage conflicts of interest that comply with the statutory guidance issued
by NHS England in June 2016. Moreover the CCG can demonstrate a proactive approach
towards the management of conflicts of interest and its responsibilities for public
accountability.

Data Quality
The Governing Body is supplied with information in a timely manner, this information
is in a form and of a quality appropriate to enable it to discharge its duties. Regular
reports to the Governing Body include an integrated quality and performance report
and financial performance report. As part of the 360 degree evaluation members of
the Governing Body confirmed that the organisation has appropriate systems,
processes and metrics to ensure that information and data provided is robust and
accurate. In addition through the annual committee evaluation process members
confirmed data and information provided is appropriate.
Information Governance
The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and procedures by
which the NHS handles information about patients and employees, in particular
personal identifiable information. The NHS Information Governance Framework is
supported by an information governance toolkit and the annual submission process
provides assurances to the CCG, other organisations and to individuals that personal
information is dealt with legally, securely, efficiently and effectively.
Wakefield CCG places high importance on ensuring there are robust information
governance systems and processes in place to help protect patient and corporate
information.
We have established an information governance management
framework and have developed information governance processes and procedures
in line with the information governance toolkit. We have ensured all staff undertake
annual information governance training and have implemented a staff information
governance handbook to ensure staff are aware of their information governance
roles and responsibilities.
There are processes in place for incident reporting and investigation of serious
incidents. We are continually seeking to improve and develop our information
governance and management through procedural review, training for information
asset owners, improved ongoing awareness culture and working with our informatics
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partner to improve system security. The CCG has had no serious incidents which
required investigation (SIRIs) relating to data security breaches during 2016/17.
The CCG has completed the information governance toolkit self-assessment and
achieved the required minimum level 2 in all relevant standards. The internal audit
review of information governance reached a finding of ‘significant assurance’.
Business Critical Models
In line with best practice recommendations of the 2013 MacPherson review into the
quality assurance of analytical models, it has been confirmed that an appropriate
framework and environment is in place to provide quality assurance of business
critical models.
Third party assurances
The CCG currently contracts with a number of external organisations for the
provision of back office services and functions. Assurances on the effectiveness of
the controls in place for these are received in part from an annual Services Auditor
Report from the relevant service.
Service Auditor Reports
The CCG currently contracts with a number of external organisations for the
provision of back office services and functions. Assurances on the effectiveness of
the controls in place for these are received in part from an annual Service Auditor
Report (SAR) from the relevant service.
The CCG has received confirmation from NHS Shared Business Services that their
independent auditors PwC have undertaken their ISAE3402 (Type II) audit and
provided an unqualified report in respect of all twenty one control objectives.
The CCG has received confirmation from NHS Business Services Authority that their
independent auditors Price Waterhouse Cooper have undertaken an ISAE3402
(Type II) audit and provided an unqualified report in respect of Prescription
Payments report. Additionally the CCG received an NHS Pension Scheme 2016/17
contribution assurance statement.
The CCG has received confirmation from NHS Digital that their independent auditors
Price Waterhouse Cooper have undertaken an ISAE3402 (Type II) audit and
provided an adverse opinion. Moreover the CCG has received confirmation from
Capita (in relation to Primary Care Support England - PCSE) that their independent
auditors KPMG have undertaken an ISAE3402 (Type II) audit and provided an
adverse opinion.
NHS Digital (the trading name of the “Health and Social Care Information Centre”)
provides IT services as part of the end to end service alongside other organisations
to support processing of NHS payments and deductions to providers of general
practice (“GP”) services in England. NHS Digital services collect data, calculate
achievement, generate a payment request and issue this to payment agencies for
payment to practices.
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Capita provides the administrative and payments system via a contract with NHS
England, known as PCSE. This includes processing of payments to GP's.
The adverse SAR opinions on the control environments for both NHS Digital and
Capita have led to the CCG having to put further internal controls in place to mitigate
the possible consequences.
With regard to PMS payments (80% of GPs in Wakefield), the CCG has been able to
demonstrate and evidence that robust controls are in place for any payments made
to GPs. The CCG's external auditors have confirmed this to be the case. For GMS
payments (20% of Practices), although some controls exist, the CCG would like to
further develop controls in this area to achieve the same high standard as in PMS.
The CCG will work with both Capita and NHSE as well as its external and internal
auditors to ensure it has sufficient internal controls in place, whilst Capita improve
their own systems. Capita have acknowledged the findings in their unqualified audit
report and have a defined programme of improvement.
Being a non NHS body, eMBED do not provide an SAR as a form of assurance.
However CCGs have been given an assurance statement from eMBED assuring
compliance with their contractual commitments and delivery of a satisfactory level of
service to their clients. As the lack of an SAR was known about earlier in the year,
the CCG instructed its Internal Auditors to look at the controls in place in the CCG.
The final report is awaited but Internal Audit has confirmed that their opinion will be
one of either significant or full assurance.
Control Issues
Two control issues have been identified during 2016/17.
Financial
In line with the overall commissioning sector, the CCG is under significant financial
pressure with challenging efficiency targets in the current and future years.
The CCG planned to deliver a surplus of £5.9m with a further national risk reserve
held of 1% (£5.4m) to be only released in accordance with national guidance.
At the start of the year the CCG, along with related parties (NHS North Kirklees CCG
and Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust), identified financial risks associated with
delivery of the final stages of the Meeting the Challenge programme. The risk was
sought to be both managed and mitigated throughout the year, reported to
Governing Body on a regular basis and subject to regular conversations with
regulators; NHS England and NHS Improvement.
This risk remained a key discussion point throughout the year, resulting in all parties
entering an arbitration process in January 2017 to establish which parts of the health
system should report the impact.
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In February 2017, the arbitration process concluded with NHS Wakefield CCG and
NHS North Kirklees CCG being liable for the costs. NHS Wakefield CCG therefore
incurred a cost of £5.4m which resulted in an off-plan position reported at year-end.
During the year an increased focus was given to achievement of Quality Innovation
Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) targets.
Clinical Cabinet have overall
responsibility for delivery of QIPP in the organisation. Additional assurance about
management controls to effectively implement QIPP was provided to the Integrated
Governance Committee through ‘deep dives’ presentations.
The CCG is
implementing the ‘Right Care’ programme across the health economy. This
programme uses data and evidence to shine a light on unwarranted variation to
support an improvement in quality. There is clinical ownership of the QIPP
programme and implementation of the ‘Right Care’ programme, both are standing
items at Clinical Cabinet.
In autumn 2016 NHS England undertook a deep dive review of the CCG’s financial
position and controls. This found the CCG had robust financial controls and made a
small number of recommendations in relation to the management of QIPP and
development of a financial reporting dashboard.
We have maintained controls implemented during the ‘internal turnaround’ of
2015/16. As a result efficiencies continue to be identified across all areas of
expenditure; this includes actions taken as the result of suggestions made by the
CCG’s staff forum.
The CCG’s Budget Control Policy and Procedures were reviewed during the year.
Implementation was supported by a series of mandatory training sessions for budget
holders. The internal audit review of financial transactions during the year delivered
an opinion of ‘significant assurance’.
During the year the CCG’s overall financial performance was monitored and
managed on a regular basis by the Executive Team and the Integrated Governance
Committee. The Governing Body also receives a finance report at each meeting
which covers all aspects of financial performance, this includes detailed reporting
about QIPP performance.
It has taken a great deal of effort to deliver the financial position reported in these
accounts and to minimise the impact on services and services partners and looking
ahead, as the NHS enters a more financially challenged period, the need to work
even more economically and efficiently will be a system focus.

Achievement of NHS Constitution Targets
Throughout the year, delivery of NHS constitutional targets has been a key area of
focus for the CCG and its delivery partners. This relates particularly to high quality
urgent and emergency care (including the four hour waiting time standard and
emergency ambulance response standard) and a step change in productivity of
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elective care (including the 18 week referral to treatment (RTT) waiting time
standard)
During the year however, and as noted on the risk register, these standards have not
been delivered due, in part, to the increased system pressures in the NHS. Action
plans are in place with local providers to improve overall performance which are
monitored regularly by contract and quality management boards. These delivery
plans include transformation of elements of the system to improve access and
experience and implementing best practice associated with the West Yorkshire
Accelerator Zone which has provided investment to implement new care pathways in
urgent care.
Joint governance has been implemented (including the A&E
Improvement Board and Planned Care Improvement Board) to ensure that
appropriate rectification actions are implemented.
In addition working as lead
commissioner with Yorkshire Ambulance Service NHS Trust, the CCG has been
receiving assurance against the performance improvement plans in place as well as
the implementation of the Ambulance Response Pilot programme being
implemented at the Trust.
An Executive Improvement Board formed of regulators, CCGs and Mid Yorkshire
Hospital NHS Trust met to consider the impact of the failure to meet the
constitutional targets. It was determined that risks were fully understood and risks to
quality had been mitigated.
The CCG’s performance against NHS constitution targets was monitored and
managed on a regular basis by the Executive Team, Integrated Governance
Committee and the Governing Body.
It has been determined that these control issues will not have a material impact on
the accounts.
Review of economy, efficiency & effectiveness of the use of resources
The CCG has well developed systems and processes for managing its resources. As
a clinically led organisation key processes are applied by the CCG to ensure that
resources are used economically, efficiently and effectively.
The Governing Body has overarching responsibility for ensuring the CCG has
appropriate arrangements in place to exercise it functions effectively, efficiently, and
economically and is supported in doing so via the GBAF.
The Chief Finance Officer, who is a member of Governing Body, is responsible for
providing financial advice and for supervising financial control and accounting
systems. He presents a finance report to every meeting of the Governing Body and
the Integrated Governance Committee.
The Audit Committee receives regular reports on a range of governance issues
including from both internal and external auditors.
The Audit Committee will have the opportunity to scrutinise in detail the CCG’s
financial statements for 2017/18 at its meeting on 4 May 2017, together with the
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report from external audit. The Governing Body has delegated formal sign off of the
annual report and accounts to the CCG Chair, Chief Officer and Audit Committee
Chair.
The CCG informs its control framework by the work of the internal audit function to
ensure that controls are operating effectively and to advise on areas for
improvement. Audit action plans are monitored and implementation reviewed and
reported to the Audit Committee. The annual internal audit plan is approved by the
Audit Committee and covers the risk profile of the CCG.
Assurance can also be drawn from external assessments of the organisation. The
CCG is rated as ‘good’ for the well-led section of the NHS England improvement and
assessment framework.
Delegation of functions
The Governing Body has approved delegation of powers through the Scheme of
Reservation and Delegation and terms of reference for committees.
The Governing Body monitors this through regular reports from the CCG’s
Accountable Officer and its committees. These reports cover use of resources and
responses to risk. Furthermore the Audit Committee on behalf of the Governing Body
considered a mid-year progress report from all committees of the Governing Body.
No areas of concern were identified; there is no evidence of any internal control
failures or poor risk management.
The Probity Committee is a committee of the Governing Body. The Committee has
been established to enable the members to make collective decisions on the review,
planning and procurement of primary care services in Wakefield under delegated
authority from NHS England. In performing its role, the Committee exercises its
management of the functions in accordance with the agreement entered into
between NHS England and the CCG.
Counter fraud arrangements
The CCG's counter fraud arrangements are in compliance with NHS Protect’s
Standards for commissioners: Fraud, Bribery and Corruption. These arrangements
are underpinned by the appointment of accredited local counter fraud specialists, the
introduction of a CCG-wide Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Policy and the
nomination of the Chief Finance Officer as the executive lead for counter fraud.
The CCG’s Audit Committee reviews and approves an annual counter fraud plan
identifying the actions to be undertaken to create an anti-fraud culture, deter prevent,
detect and, where not prevented, investigate suspicions of fraud. The counter fraud
team also produces an annual report and regular progress reports for the review and
consideration of the Chief Finance Officer and Audit Committee.
The Counter Fraud Team also complete an annual self-assessment of compliance
against the NHS Protect’s Standards for commissioners: Fraud, Bribery and
Corruption, which is reviewed and approved by the Chief Finance Officer prior to
submission to NHS Protect.
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Head of Internal Audit Opinion
Following completion of the planned audit work for the financial year for the CCG,
the Head of Internal Audit issued an independent and objective opinion on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the CCG’s system of risk management, governance
and internal control. The Head of Internal Audit concluded that:
Roles and responsibilities
On behalf of the Clinical Commissioning Group the Governing Body is collectively
accountable for maintaining a sound system of internal control and is responsible for
putting in place arrangements for gaining assurance about the effectiveness of that
overall system.
The Governance Statement is an annual statement by the Accountable Officer, on
behalf of the Clinical Commissioning Group and the Governing Body, setting out:




how the individual responsibilities of the Accountable Officer are discharged with
regard to maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the
achievement of policies, aims and objectives;
the purpose of the system of internal control as evidenced by a description of the
risk management and review processes, including the Assurance Framework
process;
the conduct and results of the review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control including any disclosures of significant control failures together with
assurances that actions are or will be taken where appropriate to address issues
arising.

The organisation’s Assurance Framework should bring together all of the evidence
required to support the Governance Statement requirements.
In accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Head of Internal
Audit (HoIA) is required to provide an annual opinion, based upon and limited to the
work performed, on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s risk
management, control and governance processes (i.e. the organisation’s system of
internal control). This is achieved through a risk-based plan of work, agreed with
management and approved by the Audit Committee, which should provide a
reasonable level of assurance, subject to the inherent limitations described below.
The opinion does not imply that Internal Audit has reviewed all risks and assurances
relating to the organisation. As such, it is one component that the Clinical
Commissioning Group and Governing Body take into account in making its
Governance Statement.
The Head of Internal Audit Opinion
The purpose of my annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion is to contribute to the
assurances available to the Accountable Officer, the Commissioning Clinical Group
and Governing Body which underpins the assessment of the effectiveness of the
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organisation’s system of internal control. This opinion will in turn assist the
organisation in the completion of its Governance Statement.
My opinion is set out as follows:
1. Overall opinion;
2. Basis for the opinion;
3. Commentary.
My overall opinion is that
o Significant assurance can be given that there is a generally sound
system of internal control, designed to meet the organisation’s
objectives, and that controls are generally being applied consistently.
The basis for forming my opinion is as follows:
1. An assessment of the design and operation of the underpinning Assurance
Framework and supporting processes; and
2. An assessment of the range of individual opinions arising from risk-based
audit assignments, contained within the internal audit risk-based plan, that
have been reported throughout the year. This assessment has taken account
of the relative materiality of these areas and management’s progress in
respect of addressing control weaknesses.
The commentary below provides the context for my opinion and together with the
opinion should be read in its entirety.
The design and operation of the Assurance Framework and associated
processes
During 2016/17 the Clinical Commissioning Group’s (CCG) arrangements for
managing risk and providing assurance to the Governing Body have continued to
mature.
The Governing Body has identified its objectives, risks, controls, sources of
assurance and gaps in control/assurance and has created and agreed an Assurance
Framework, the design of which has been kept under regular review since the
creation of the CCG.
The Governing Body retains oversight of the design and content of the Assurance
Framework. The Governing Body reviews the Assurance Framework bi-annually
with any gaps in assurances and controls are considered. The Governing Body is
well sighted on the risks facing the organisation. A review of the design and
operation of the Assurance Framework and associated processes was completed in
2016/17 and I can conclude that the methodology surrounding the design and
operation of the framework has been sound.
The range of individual opinions arising from risk-based audit assignments,
contained within risk-based plans that have been reported throughout the year
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The 2016/17 Internal Audit Plan was approved by the Audit Committee in May 2016.
The work of Internal Audit continues to focus on the design and embedding of core
processes to underpin the delivery of the CCG’s strategic objectives. As such the
audit plan was structured around the following key responsibilities of the CCG:








Governance (incorporating assurance and risk management)
Securing Improvements in Quality
Commissioning and Contract Management
Business Development
Integration
Financial Governance
Information Governance

Following the completion of an audit an audit report is issued and an assurance level
awarded. The following assurance levels are used:
Full assurance can be given that there is a strong system of internal
control which is designed and operating effectively to meet the
organisation’s objectives.
Significant assurance can be given that there is a good system of
internal control which is designed and operating effectively to meet
SIGNIFICANT
the organisation’s objectives and that this is operating in the majority
of core areas
Limited assurance can be given as whilst some elements of the
system of internal control are operating, improvements are required
LIMITED
in it’s design and/or operation in core areas to effectively meet the
organisation’s objectives
No assurance can be given as there is a weak system of internal
NO
control and significant improvement is required in its design and/or
operation to effectively meet the organisation’s objectives.
FULL

An action plan is agreed with management. In order to ensure significant progress is
being made in the implementation of agreed actions an Audit Recommendations
Status Report is presented to every Audit Committee.
Internal Audit also supports the organisation when undergoing process
design/redesign through the completion of advisory audit work. These audits are
designed to provide advice as opposed to an assurance level during the
development phase. Four advisory pieces of work have been completed during
2016/17 to date with another currently in progress.
The first advisory piece of work completed was a review of the evidence submitted
by the CCG in its Information Governance Toolkit (V13) from March 2016. The
review was carried out to highlight additional evidence requirements to support the
CCGs self-assessment score for the Information Governance Toolkit submission in
March 2017. Further advisory work has been completed which provided a gap
analysis in respect of the evidence that the CCG was planning to submit in its
Information Governance Toolkit (V14) by 31 March 2017.
63 | P a g e

Three other pieces of advisory work undertaken during the year included a review of
the procedural notes (and accompanying documentation) to ensure that the
processes surrounding the use of a soon to be introduced Government Procurement
Card were adequate, a review of the CCG's systems and process in respect of the
introduction of an in-house self-billing system for Continuing Healthcare, and a
position statement regarding the CCG’s management of the Transition of Services,
following the closure of the CSU.
The outcome of the assurance audit reports as at 23 May 2017 from the 2016/2017
audit plan are summarised below. The audits in italics will be completed by 31 May
2017.
Audit
Assurance Level
Governance Review (Including review of Assurance
Significant
Framework)
Conflicts of Interest
Significant
Business Continuity Planning (Parts 1 and 2)
Significant
Budgetary Management
Significant
Financial Transactions
Significant
Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP)
Significant
Lead Contracting
Significant
Vanguard Projects: Governance Arrangements
Full
Business Intelligence
Under Management Review
(Significant)
Collaboration
Under Management Review
(Significant)
Continuing Healthcare
Under Management Review
(Significant)
Public and Patient Engagement
Significant
Patient Safety and Experience
Under Management Review
(Significant)
In 2015/16 Internal Audit identified significant weaknesses in the CCG’s budget
setting environment. Internal Audit liaised closely with the CCG as it
actioned/implemented recommendations to address the weaknesses identified and
in the final Head of Internal Opinion issued in April 2016 I was able to confirm that no
areas of significant weakness remained.
In 2016/17 a review of Budgetary Management has been completed where further
confirmation was sought that the CCG has addressed the weaknesses identified; a
significant assurance opinion was assigned to this audit.
Taking into account the internal audit work completed to date, all of my findings and
the CCG’s actions to date in response to my recommendations, I believe that no
areas of significant risk remain.
Helen Kemp-Taylor, Managing Director and Head of Internal Audit - 23 May 2017
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Review of the effectiveness of governance, risk management and internal
control
My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the
work of the internal auditors, executive managers and clinical leads within the CCG
who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control
framework. I have drawn on performance information available to me. My review is
also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their annual audit letter
and other reports.
Our assurance framework provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of
controls that manage risks to the CCG achieving its principles objectives have been
reviewed.
I have been advised on the implications of the result of this review by:
 The Governing Body
 The Audit Committee
 Clinical Cabinet
 The Integrated Governance Committee
 Probity Committee
 Connecting Care Executive
 Internal audit.
Conclusion
Two internal control issues were identified during my review. Firstly, the CCG is
under significant financial pressure and reporting an off plan position, the planned
surplus (£5.9m) will not be achieved. Secondly, NHS constitution targets have not
delivered as planned during the year due to increased system pressure across the
NHS. Both control issues were identified and managed throughout the year.
Furthermore full details were reported to the Governing Body, committees and
regulators. The control issues as in large part the result of external system
pressures not within the control of the CCG.
It has been determined that these control issues have not had a material impact on
the accounts.

Jo Webster
Accountable Officer
25 May 2017
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Remuneration and Staff Report
Remuneration Report
The definition of “senior manager” as stated in the CCG Annual Reporting Guidance
provided by NHS England is:
“Those persons in senior positions having authority or responsibility for directing or
controlling the major activities of the Clinical Commissioning Group. This means
those who influence the decisions of the Clinical Commissioning Group as a whole
rather than the decisions of individual directorates or departments.”
Details of senior managers’ remuneration are disclosed in the following paragraphs
and tables. All senior managers listed are members of the Governing Body except
for one individual who provides senior manager support and clinical advice to the
Governing Body.
Any changes in senior management during the year have been included in the table
as appropriate.
Remuneration Committee
The members of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:
Sandra Cheseldine, Lay Member
Stephen Hardy, Lay Member
Rhod Mitchell, Lay Member, Chair (until 28th February 2017)
Richard Hindley, Lay Member, Chair (started 1st February 2017).
The committee is fully supported and advised by the CCG HR representative,
commissioned from Sheffield CCG as part of a HR collaborative.
There have been no Committee meetings from 1st April 2016 to 31st March 2017.
Our Remuneration Committee is required as part of our Constitution and meets as
and when required to discuss and make recommendations to the Governing Body on
determinations about pay and remuneration for employees of the Clinical
Commissioning Group and people who provide services to the Clinical
Commissioning Group.
This committee determines the remuneration and conditions of service of the senior
team, and can review the performance of the Accountable Officer and other senior
team members which may impact on the determination of annual salary.
The Committee will apply best practice in the decision making processes, for
example, when considering individual remuneration the committee will:
•
Comply with current disclosure requirements for remuneration
•
On occasion seek independent advice about remuneration for individuals; and
•
Ensure that decisions are based on clear and transparent criteria.
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Senior Managers Performance Related Pay
The CCG does not operate a performance related pay scheme.
Policy on Senior Managers Contracts
Table 1 below gives details of senior manager contracts.
The termination policy is as follows:
i.
Under a Contract for Service
In the event that the CCG considers that the GP Member has failed to comply with
their duties under this Agreement or has otherwise breached any terms, the CCG
may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the GP Member with immediate
effect and without compensation for loss of notice.
ii.
Under a Contract of Employment
The Senior Manager is entitled to either three or six months’ written notice from the
CCG, except in the case of summary or immediate dismissal. The CCG may
exercise its discretion to pay in lieu of all or part of the notice period. The CCG may
terminate the contract of employment with immediate effect and without
compensation under certain circumstances as stated within the contract. A Senior
Manager may at any point terminate their employment with their notice period. Notwithstanding the above a Senior Manager will be issued within their notice period
prior to the end of their tenure in line with the Constitution and Standing Orders.
There were no termination payments made during 2016/17.
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Table 1: Senior Managers Contract Details

Name

Role

Type of contract

Nature of Contract

Dr Avijit Biswas

GP Member, Pinfold Lane Surgery

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Dr David Brown

GP Member, Kings Medical Centre

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Dr Ann Carroll

GP Member, Outwood Park Medical Centre

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

No longer a GB Member

Dr Debbie Hallott

GP Member, New Southgate Surgery

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Dr Pravin Jayakumar

GP Member, Grove Surgery & Network Chair

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Dr Clive Harries

GP Member, Chapelthorpe

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Dr Adam Sheppard

GP Member & Deputy Chair

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Sandra Cheseldine

Lay Member - Audit

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Stephen Hardy

Lay Member - PPI

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Rhod Mitchell

Lay Member & Deputy Chair

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Dr Lynda Wright

Clinical Lead - Pallative Care

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Dr Graham Cole

Clinical Lead - Medicine Management

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Dr Abdul Mustafa

Clinical Lead - Cancer

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Dr Soumitra Dutta

Clinical Lead - Urgent Care

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Dr Patrick Wynn

Clinical Lead - Planned Care

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Dr Chris Bolton

Clinical Lead - Urgent Care

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Dr Chris Barraclough

Clinical Lead - Medicines Optimisation

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Dr Greg Connor

Executive Clinical Advisor

Contract of Employment (Via Payroll) Permanent

Sharon Fox

Governing Body - Nurse

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Dr Hany Lotfallah

Governing Body - Secondary Care Consultant Contract for Service (Via Payroll )

Fixed Term

Alison Sugarman

Governing Body - Practice Manager

Secondment

Fixed Term

Dr Phil Earnshaw

Clinical Chair

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Joanne Webster

Chief Officer

Contract of Employment (Via Payroll) Permanent

Andrew Pepper

Chief Finance Officer

Contract of Employment (Via Payroll) Permanent

Joanne Pollard

Chief of Service Delivery & Quality

Contract of Employment (Via Payroll) Permanent

Patrick Keane

Interim Chief Operating Officer

Contract of Employment (Via Payroll) Fixed Term

Melanie Brown

Programme Director - Integration

Contract of Employment (Via Payroll) Permanent

Richard Hindley

Lay Member & Deputy Chair

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Diane Hampshire

Governing Body - Nurse

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Andrea Hazelgrave

Clinical Nurse Advisor

Secondment

Fixed Term

Aly Damji

Network Chair

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Timothy Dean

Network Chair

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Nadim Nayyar

Network Chair

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Shakeel Sarwar

Network Chair

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Colin Speers

Network Chair

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term

Ann Carroll

Chair of Committee in Common and Clinical
Lead

Contract for Service (Via Payroll)

Fixed Term
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Date Contract Started

End date:

Notice Period
3 months for either
1st April 2013
28th February 2017
party
3 months for either
30th June 2017
1st April 2013
party
3 months for either
1st July 2016 (Clinical Lead) 31st March 2017 (Clinical Lead) party
3 months for either
1st July 2015
30th June 2018
party
3 months for either
1st July 2015
30th June 2018
party
3 months for either
1st April 2013
30th June 2018
party
3 months for either
1st April 2013
30th June 2018
party
3 months for either
1st April 2013
31st March 2018
party
3 months for either
1st April 2013
31st March 2020
party
3 months for either
1st April 2013
28th February 2017
party
3 months for either
1st April 2013
31st March 2017
party
3 months for either
1st April 2013
31st March 2017
party
3 months for either
1st April 2013
31st March 2017
party
3 months for either
26th November 2015
31st March 2017
party
3 months for either
1st April 2013
31st March 2017
party
3 months for either
11th July 2014
31st March 2017
party
3 months for either
2nd November 2015
30th September 2017
party
3 months for either
1st August 2014
n/a
party
3 months for either
1st April 2013
31st January 2017
party
3 months for either
1st April 2013
31st March 2019
party
3 months for either
1st July 2015
30th June 2018
party
3 months for either
1st April 2013
31st March 2019
party
6 months for either
1st April 2013
n/a
party
6 months for either
1st April 2013
n/a
party
3 months for either
28th August 2013
n/a
party
3 months for either
1st April 2015
31st March 2018
party
3 months for either
15th September 2014
n/a
party
3 months for either
1st February 2017
31st January 2019
party
3 months for either
1st March 2017
28th February 2018
party
3 months for either
10th October 2016
9th October 2017
party
3 months for either
19th September 2016
31st March 2017
party
3 months for either
19th September 2016
31st March 2017
party
3 months for either
19th September 2016
31st March 2017
party
3 months for either
19th September 2016
31st March 2017
party
3 months for either
19th September 2016
31st March 2017
party

1st February 2017
(Committee in Common)

31st March 2018 (Committee in party
Common)

3 months for either

Salaries and Allowances Disclosure
The remuneration outlined in table 2 below reflects the amounts received in year for the period of time worked and does not include employers national insurance
or superannuation costs.
There was no compensation for loss of office during 2016/17
There were no golden hellos during 2016/17
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Table 2 Salaries and
Allowances
Note
1&6
6

Name and Title

12
11

6
7
6&
12
2

4

Expense
Peformance pay
Long term
All pension
Salary
payments
and
performance pay
related
(bands of (taxable) to
bonuses(bands and bonuses(bands benefits(bands of Total (a to e ) (
£5,000) nearest £100*
of £5,000)
of £5,000)
£2,500)
bands of £5,000)

a

b

Salary
(bands of
£5,000)

Expense
payments
(taxable) to
nearest £100*

2015/ 2016
d
Long term
Peformance
performance pay
pay and
and
bonuses(bands bonuses(bands of
of £5,000)
£5,000)
c

e

f

All pension
related
benefits(bands of
£2,500)

Total (a to e )
( bands of
£5,000)

Dr Phil Earnshaw
Sharon Fox

Chair and Clinical Lead
Nurse Member
GP, New Southgate
Surgery
Nurse Member
Lay Member
GP, Chaplethorpe
Medical Centre
Lay Member and Deputy
Chair
GP Member, Grove
Surgery
Deputy Chief Executive ,
Chief Operating Officer
Secondary care
Consultant
Lay Member and Deputy
Chair
Chief financial Officer
Chief of Service Delivery
and Quality
GP, Lupset Health Centre
& Asst Clinical Chair
Practice Manager
Member
Chief Officer

95-100
5-10

95-100
5-10

110-115
5-10

110-115
5-10

30-35

30-35

20-25

20-25

0-5
10-15

0-5
10-15

0
10-15

0
10-15

35-40

35-40

30-35

30-35

Dr Debbie Hallott
Diane Hampshire
Stephen Hardy
Dr Clive Harries
Richard Hindley
DR Pravin Jayakumar
Patrick Keane

Rhod Mitchell

Dr Adam Sheppard
Alison Sugarman
Joanne Webster

4&6

f

55-60

Joanne Pollard

12

e

Executive Clinical Advisor

Andrew Pepper

6

2016 / 2017
d

Dr Greg Connor

Dr Ann Carroll

Mr Hany Lotfallah
3

c

Sandra Cheseldine

Dr David Brown
Melanie Brown

13
5

b

GP, Elizabeth Court
Surgery
GP, Kings Medical
Practice
Director of
Commissioning and
Integration
GP, Outwood Park
Medical Centre
Lay Member

Dr Avijit Biswas

10
6&8

a

Dr Paul Dewhirst
Stephen Bryan

GP, Queen Street Medical
Centre
Practice Manager
Member

25-30

25-30

30-35

30-35

30-35

30-35

30-35

30-35

60-65

35-40

5-10

5-10

30-35

10-15

10-15

10-15

60-65

60-65

40-45

100

20-22.5

4,800

20-22.5

55-60
30-35
10-15

22.5-25

85-90

0-5

0-5

0

0

35-40

35-40

20-25

20-25

45-50

50-55

90-95

90-95

15-20

15-20

15-20

15-20

10-15

10-15

10-15

(2.5)-0

100-105

100-105

30-32.5

130-135

0-2.5

100-105

95-100

27.5-30

125-135

75-80

75-80

60-65

5-10

5-10

0-5

130-135

105-110

0

0

5-10

5-10

0

0

0-5

0-5

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

95-100

4,600

4,200

95-100

110-115

19,200

0-2.5

10-15

60-65
0-5
18,500

125-130

Wakefield Council
Andrew Balchin
9
9
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13

Dr Andrew Furber

Director of Adults, Health
& Communities Wakefield Council
Director of Public Health
Wakefield Council

This person ceased 28th Feb 2017
This person is shared across Wakefield CCG and North Kirklees CCG on 50/50 basis. Only 50% of salary is shown
This person ceased 28th Feb 2017.
These people ceased on 31st July 2015 but are included for prior year comparison
This person ceased on 31/1/2017
These people are local GP's whose roles are within their practices but who are engaged part time in the Governing Body of the CCG. The CCG engagements are contracts for service.
This person commenced on 1st March 2017
This person ceased as a governing body member 31/5/2017
Wakefield Council staff do not receive any remuneration from the CCG
This person is shared with Wakefield Council on a 50/50 basis. Only 50% of the salary is shown above.
This person commenced on 1st March 2017
These people commenced during 2015/16. They were paid part year in 15/16 and full year in 16/17
This person reduced the number of sessions in 2016/17.
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Pension Related Benefits
Pension related benefits are the increase in the annual pension entitlement
determined in accordance with the HMRC method. This compares the accrued
pension and the lump sum at age 60 at the end of the financial year against the
same figures at the beginning of the financial year adjusted for inflation (please note
that the pensions values calculated for the beginning of the financial year may have
been based on previous employment in a non CCG role). The difference is then
multiplied by 20 which represents the average number of years an employee
receives their pension.
Pensions Benefit Disclosure
The information in Table 3 has been provided by NHS Business Service Authority
(BSA).
Table 3: Pensions (subject to audit)
a

Name and Title
M Brown*
A Pepper**
J Pollard
J Webster

Real Increase in
pension at
pension age
(bands of £2,500)
£000's
20-22.5
-2.5 - 0
0-2.5
0-2.5

b

c

d

e

Lump sum at
Total accrued
pension age
pension at
related to
Real increase in
pension age at accrued pension
pension lump sum 31 March 2017 at 31 March 2017 Cash Equivalent
at pension age
(bands of
(bands of
Transfer Value at
(bands of £2,500)
£5,000)
£5,000)
April 2016
£000's
£000's
£000's
£000's
0-2.5
0-5
0-5
32
-10-12.5
30-35
90-95
533
5-7.5
30-35
105-110
621
0-2.5
25-30
70.75
387

f

g

Real Increase in
Cash Equivalent
Cash Equivalent Transfer Value at
Transfer Value
31 March 2017
£000's
£000's
195
228
-24
509
41
662
35
422

* This person is 50 % funded by Wakefield District Council but the whole value of pensions is shown in this table
** This person has joined a salary sacrifice scheme within the year which affects pensions values.

Cash Equivalent Transfer Value
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of
the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The
benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s (or
other allowable beneficiary’s) pension payable from the scheme. CETVs are
calculated in accordance with the Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Values)
Regulations 2008.
Real Increase in CETV
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes
account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the
employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or
arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the
period.
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h

Employers
Contribution to
stakeholder
pension
£000's
-

Pay Multiples Disclosure
The clinical commissioning group is required to disclose the relationship between the
remuneration of the highest-paid member of the clinical commissioning group and
the median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce. The full time equivalent
banded remuneration of the highest paid member in the CCG in the financial year
2016-17 was £130-135 k (2015-16, £155-£160k). This was 3.43 times (2015-16 4.12
times) the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £30-£40k (2015-16,
£30-£40k).
The change in banded remuneration is due to a change in the calculation method
used. The highest paid member used in 15/16 is a role that does not require 37.5
hours and therefore the highest paid member is a different individual.
Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay,
benefits-in-kind, but not severance payments. It does not include employer pension
contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.

Highest Paid Member of Governing Body
Median Employee Salary
Pay Multiple

Value 16 / 17
132,500
38,683
3.43

Off Payroll Engagements Disclosure
In line with HM Treasury guidance, where personal service companies have been
engaged, we have taken actions to gain assurance that they are adequately
accounted for and responsible for, their own tax and NI arrangements
All off payroll engagements as of 31 March 2017, for more than £220 per day and
that last longer than 6 months are as follows:
Off payroll engagements longer than 6 months.
For all off payroll engagements between 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017, for more
than £220 per day and that last longer than 6 months.

Total number of existing engagements as of 31st March 2017
Of which, the number that have existed
 for less than one year at the time of reporting
 for between one and two years at the time of reporting
 for between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting
 for between3 and 4 years at the time of reporting
 for 4 or more years at the time of reporting

Number
4
1
0
0
3
0

All existing off-payroll engagements, outlined above, have at some point been
subject to a risk based assessment as to whether assurance is required that the
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individual is paying the right amount of tax and, where necessary, that assurance
has been sought.

New Off-payroll engagements
For all off-payroll engagements between 1 April 2016 and March
2017, for more than £220 per day and that last longer than six
months.

The number of new engagements, or those that reached six
months in duration, during the time period
The number of new engagements which include contractual
clauses giving the employer the right to request assurance in
relation to Income tax and National Insurance obligations
The number for whom assurance has been requested
The numbers for whom assurance has been requested and
received
The number for whom assurance has been requested but not
received
The number that have been terminated as a result of assurance
not being received.

1

0
0
1
0
0

Off-payroll board members/senior official engagements
For any off-payroll engagements of board members, and /or,
senior officials with significant financial responsibility, between 1
April 2016 and 31 March 2017
Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or
senior officers with significant financial responsibility, during the
financial year (1)
Total no. of individuals on payroll and off-payroll that have been
deemed ' board members, and/or, senior officials with significant
financial responsibility', during the financial year. This figure
should include both on and off-payroll engagements (2)
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0

0

22

Staff Report
In line with the requirements of the Equality Act, we are committed to making sure
that equality and diversity are a priority when planning and commissioning local
healthcare. To help us do this we work closely with local communities to understand
their needs and how best to commission the most appropriate services to meet
those needs. This is equally important in the way we recruit, involve and develop our
staff.
Our policies
To ensure that our staff members do not experience discrimination, harassment and
victimisation we have a range of policies;
 Acceptable Standards of Behaviour Policy
 Annual Leave and General Public Bank Holidays Policy
 Disciplinary Policy
 Education, Training and Development Policy
 Employment Break Policy
 Equality and Diversity Policy
 Expenses Policy
 Flexible Working Policy
 Grievance Policy
 Managing Sickness Absence Policy
 Maternity, Adoption, Maternity Support (Paternity) and Parental Leave
Policy
 Organisational Change Policy
 Pay Progression Policy
 Recognition Agreement
 Recruitment and Selection Policy
 Secondment Policy
 Social Media Policy
 Special Leave Policy
 Whistleblowing Policy.
Equality impact assessments have been used to screen all relevant policies and
over the next year we will be monitoring the impact of the implementation of our
workforce policies on all our employees to ensure that we are proactively identifying
and addressing any potential inequalities.
We recognise that in order to remove the barriers experienced by individuals with a
disability, we need to make reasonable adjustments for our disabled employees. We
do this on a case by case basis and involve occupational health services as
appropriate. The principle of reasonable adjustments is embedded throughout all
policies as described above.
Staff Training
As part of our ongoing commitment to staff training and development, we are
organisationally undertaking a programme of staff development, the planning for
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which commenced in January 2017. Called “Moving Forward Together”, the
programme will continue throughout summer 2017, and will involve all staff at all
levels.
Staff Involvement
Please see the Staff Forum section.

The gender distribution of the employees of NHS Wakefield
The gender distribution for the CCG is as follows:

Governing Body
VSMs (Very Senior
Managers)
All employees

Female
6
1

Male
11
1

127 (134)

25 (37)

The figures detailed are excluding Governing Body and Very Senior Managers. The
figures in brackets include them.
a) Number of senior civil service staff (or senior managers)
Pay Band
Very Senior Managers (VSM)
Personal Salary

No. of
Employees
2
32

b) Staff numbers – please see table above
c) Staff composition - please see table above

Governing Body Gender Distribution
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Staff numbers and costs
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Staff numbers and costs
Sickness absence data
The sickness absence rate for 2015/16: 4.33%
The sickness absence rate for 2016/17: 3.40%.
Expenditure on consultancy
Consultancy costs this year £120k (last year £303k).
Analysis of Other Departures
Agreements
Number
Voluntary redundancies
including early retirement
contractual costs
Mutually agreed
resignations (MARS)
contractual costs
Early retirements in the
efficiency of the service
contractual costs
Contractual payments in
lieu of notice*
Exit payments following
Employment Tribunals or
court orders
Non-contractual payments
requiring HMT approval**
TOTAL

Total Value of
agreements
£000s

A – agrees to total in
table 1

There is a nil value for all sections of this table.
Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report
NHS Wakefield CCG is not required to produce a Parliamentary Accountability and
Audit Report but has opted to include disclosures on remote contingent liabilities,
losses and special payments, gifts, and fees and charges in this Accountability
Report]. An audit certificate and report is also included in this Annual Report at page
60.
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Chief Finance Officer Commentary
I am proud to have held the role of Chief Finance Officer in our Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG) for over four years now and I am pleased to see some
real benefits for patients, carers and families commissioned by the CCG and being
delivered across the district, by the dedicated staff delivering services.
Our continued success in implementing new models of care, particularly in care
homes, our real sense of a local place through commissioning local GPs and
working closely with our Local Authority colleagues are real highlights. As are our
ongoing relationships with key providers including Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS
Trust and South West Yorkshire Partnership Foundation NHS Trust and also
Yorkshire Ambulance Service and Third Sector Parties. Combined with our
continued engagement, influence and leadership in the West Yorkshire and the
Yorkshire and Humber system make this a great place to work.
There are of course, a great number of challenges too and none other than the
continued focus on the financial pressures of the NHS, of which our CCG is not
immune.
It has taken a great deal of effort to deliver the financial position reported in these
accounts and to minimise the impact on services or service partners. My role on the
Governing Body, as well as providing stewardship of the half a billion pounds
entrusted each year to the CCG, is to provide financial leadership. The Governing
Body, its clinicians, lay members, specialists and executives, along with the
organisation as a whole, have heard those difficult messages and responded to
those difficult financial challenges.
The CCG’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
CCG annual reporting guidance: 2016/17 issued by NHS England. The
accounting policies contained in that guidance follow International Financial
Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate
to CCGs, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial
Reporting Advisory Board. The full details of the accounting policies adopted by
the CCG can be obtained from our audited accounts.
The accounts and summary financial statements shown within the Annual
Report reflect the financial consequences of the CCG’s activities and
achievement of objectives for the twelve month period ending 31 March 2017.
The CCG’s financial performance against key duties is as follows:
Performance Target
Expenditure not to exceed income
Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the

Status
Achieved
Achieved

amount specified
Revenue resources does not exceed the amount specified
Revenue administration resource does not exceed the amount
specified
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Achieved
Achieved

Looking ahead, the NHS is about to enter the most financially challenged period in
its history. Growth is lower now than in previous years, demand continues to grow,
as do prices and inflation. The value of the commissioning pound is shrinking and it
is only by working together with all parts of our health and social care system that we
can deliver our overall financial requirements. That means working to reduce
unwarranted variation through Right Care, working to deliver partnership efficiencies
through the Better Care Fund (BCF) and Accountable Care Systems (ACS), and
working at both a local and West Yorkshire level to design quality services that
deliver good outcomes in a more efficient and effective way at the Sustainability and
Transformation Plan (STP) level.
One thing is for certain, it will take all the combined skills of our Governing Body to
deliver that future, and our commitment to both commissioning the best possible
high-quality patient-centred care within our combined resources; and our past
performance that gives us a great platform from which to build our future.
Our annual report rightly records our achievements in the past year as well as our
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness. Our continued
focus on ensuring best value across the board will sharpen even further in future
years.
The annual governance statement describes how the CCG risk management and
assurance processes reflect our journey towards securing excellence in governance
with no significant gaps in controls or assurances. A full copy of the annual
governance statement is publicly available within the full annual accounts
During the year, the CCG has continued to operate a risk management system
including a Governing Body assurance framework and corporate risk register.
Financial stability, stewardship and probity are integral to the work of the Governing
Body.
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The statutory accounts have been audited by KPMG, at a cost of £70K plus VAT.
Internal audit services were provided during the year at a cost of £35K.
Finally, I would like to extend my thanks to the professional finance, contracts and
governance teams who work hard to prepare these documents as well as our
commissioning colleagues and providers who deliver the best possible services to
you, our patients, throughout the year.

Andrew Pepper
Chief Finance Officer
2 May 2017
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Annual Accounts
Please see the following pages, which detail the full annual accounts.

Jo Webster
Accountable Officer
25 May 2017
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Data entered below will be used throughout the workbook:

Entity name:
This year
Last year
This year ended
Last year ended
This year commencing:
Last year commencing:

NHS Wakefield CCG
2016-17
2015-16
31-March-2017
31-March-2016
01-April-2016
01-April-2015
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Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the Year Ended
31 March 2017
Note

2016-17
£'000

2015-16
£'000

Income from sale of goods and services
Other operating income
Total operating income

2
2

(3,564)
(2,083)
(5,647)

(3,039)
(1,148)
(4,187)

Staff costs
Purchase of goods and services
Depreciation and impairment charges
Provision expense
Other operating expenditure
Total Operating Expenditure

4
5
5
5
5

7,943
570,848
9
0
655
579,456

5,902
545,825
4
238
216
552,185

573,808

547,998

0
573,808
0
573,808

0
547,998

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

573,808

547,998

Net Operating Expenditure
Finance income
Finance expense
Net expenditure for the year
Net Gain/(Loss) on Transfer by Absorption
Total Net Expenditure for the year
Other comprehensive expenditure
Items which will not be reclassified to net operating costs
Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of PPE
Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of intangibles
Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of financial assets
Actuarial (gain)/loss in pension schemes
Impairments and reversals taken to revaluation reserve
Items that may be reclassified to Net Operating Costs
Net (gain)/loss on revaluation of available for sale financial assets
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets
Sub Total
Comprehensive Expenditure for the Year Ended 31 March 2017

3

547,998

NHS Wakefield CCG - Annual Accounts 2016-17
Statement of Financial Position as at
31 March 2017
Note
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment property
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Total non-current assets

8

2016-17
£'000

2015-16
£'000
91
0
0
0
0
91

34
0
0
0
0
34

582
2,030
0
0
678
3,290

562
2,485
0
0
527
3,574

0

0

Total current assets

3,290

3,574

Total Assets

3,381

3,608

(26,590)
0
0
0
(238)
(26,828)

(22,503)
0
0
0
(345)
(22,848)

(23,447)

(19,240)

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

Assets less Liabilities

(23,447)

(19,240)

Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity
General fund
Revaluation reserve
Other reserves
Charitable reserves
Total taxpayers' equity:

(23,447)
0
0
0
(23,447)

(19,240)
0
0
0
(19,240)

10

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

9
10

11

Non-current assets held for sale

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities
Other liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total current liabilities

12

13

Non-Current Assets plus/less Net Current Assets/Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other financial liabilities
Other liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

The notes on pages 7 to 31 form part of this statement

The financial statements on pages 3 to 6 were approved by the Audit Committee on 25 May 2017, under delegated
authority from the Governing Body and signed on its behalf by:

Chief Accountable Officer
25th May 2017
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Statement of Changes In Taxpayer's Equity for the Year Ended
31 March 2017
General
Fund
£'000

Revaluation
Reserve
£'000

Other
Reserves
£'000

Total
Reserves
£'000

(19,240)

0

0

(19,240)

0
(19,240)

0
0

0
0

0
(19,240)

Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity for 2016-17
Balance at 01 April 2016
Transfer between reserves in respect of assets transferred from closed NHS
bodies
Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning Group balance at 31 March 2017
Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2016-17
Net operating expenditure for the financial year
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets
Total revaluations against revaluation reserve

(573,808)

(573,808)

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(573,808)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(573,808)

Net funding

569,601

0

0

569,601

Balance at 31 March 2017

(23,447)

0

0

(23,447)

Net gain/(loss) on available for sale financial assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals
Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pensions
Movements in other reserves
Transfers between reserves
Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets
Transfers by absorption to/(from) other bodies
Reserves eliminated on dissolution
Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial Year

General Fund
£'000

Revaluation
Reserve
£'000

Other
Reserves
£'000

Total
Reserves
£'000

Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity for 2015-16
Balance at 01 April 2015
Transfer of assets and liabilities from closed NHS bodies as a result of the 1
April 2013 transition
Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning Group balance at 31 March 2016
Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2015-16
Net operating costs for the financial year
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets
Total revaluations against revaluation reserve

(20,522)

0

0

(20,522)

0
(20,522)

0
0

0
0

0
(20,522)

(547,998)

(547,998)

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(547,998)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(547,998)

Net funding

549,280

0

0

549,280

Balance at 31 March 2016

(19,240)

0

0

(19,240)

Net gain/(loss) on available for sale financial assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals
Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pensions
Movements in other reserves
Transfers between reserves
Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets
Transfers by absorption to/(from) other bodies
Reserves eliminated on dissolution
Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial Year

The notes on pages 7 to 31 form part of this statement
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Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended
31 March 2017
Note
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net operating expenditure for the financial year
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairments and reversals
Movement due to transfer by modified absorption
Other gains/(losses) on foreign exchange
Donated assets received credited to revenue but non-cash
Government granted assets received credited to revenue but non-cash
Interest paid
Release of PFI deferred credit
Other gains & losses
Finance costs
Unwinding of discounts
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Provisions utilised
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities

8

9
10
12
13
13

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received
(Payments) for property, plant and equipment
(Payments) for intangible assets
(Payments) for investments with the Department of Health
(Payments) for other financial assets
(Payments) for financial assets (LIFT)
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of investments with the Department of Health
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets (LIFT)
Loans made in respect of LIFT
Loans repaid in respect of LIFT
Rental revenue
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities

8

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) before Financing
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Grant in aid funding received
Other loans received
Other loans repaid
Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on Statement of Financial Position PFI and LIFT
Capital grants and other capital receipts
Capital receipts surrendered
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

11

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currencies
Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End of the Financial Year

The notes on pages 7 to 31 form part of this statement
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2016-17
£'000

2015-16
£'000

(573,808)
9
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(20)
455
0
4,088
0
(107)
0
(569,383)

(547,998)
4
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(562)
1,083
0
(1,626)
0
0
238
(548,861)

0
(68)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
1
(67)

0
(37)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(37)

(569,450)

(548,898)

569,601
0
0
0
0
0
569,601

549,280
0
0
0
0
0
549,280

151

382

527

145

0

0

678

527
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Notes to the financial statements
1

Accounting Policies
NHS England has directed that the financial statements of Clinical Commissioning Groups shall meet the accounting requirements of the Group
Accounting Manual issued by the Department of Health. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Group Accounting Manual 2016-17 issued by the Department of Health. The accounting policies contained in the Group Accounting Manual
follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to Clinical Commissioning Groups, as
determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the Group Accounting Manual permits a choice
of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the Clinical Commissioning
Group for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the Clinical Commissioning Group are
described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

1.1

Going Concern
These accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis.
Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as
evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that service in published documents.
Where a Clinical Commissioning Group ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to be provided (using the same
assets, by another public sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the final set of Financial Statements. If
services will continue to be provided the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

1.2

Accounting Convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.3

Acquisitions & Discontinued Operations
Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the public sector. Activities are considered to be ‘discontinued’
only if they cease entirely. They are not considered to be ‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector body to another.

1.4

Movement of Assets within the Department of Health Group
Transfers as part of reorganisation are accounted for by use of absorption accounting in line with the Government Financial Reporting Manual,
issued by HM Treasury. The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions (which
have been accounted for under merger accounting) have not been restated. Absorption accounting requires that entities account for their
transactions in the period in which they took place, with no restatement of performance required when functions transfer within the public sector.
Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, and is
disclosed separately from operating costs.
Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Department of Health Group are accounted for in line with IAS 20 and similarly give rise to
income and expenditure entries.

1.5

Pooled Budgets
Where the Clinical Commissioning Group has entered into a pooled budget arrangement under Section 75 of the National Health Service Act
2006 the Clinical Commissioning Group accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure arising from the activities of the
pooled budget, identified in accordance with the pooled budget agreement.
If the Clinical Commissioning Group is in a “jointly controlled operation”, the Clinical Commissioning Group recognises:
· The assets the Clinical Commissioning Group controls;
· The liabilities the Clinical Commissioning Group incurs;
· The expenses the Clinical Commissioning Group incurs; and,
· The Clinical Commissioning Group’s share of the income from the pooled budget activities.

1.6

Critical Accounting Judgements & Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
In the application of the Clinical Commissioning Group’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those
estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

1.6.1

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the process of
applying the Clinical Commissioning Group’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:
- Materiality – IAS (International Accounting Standard) 8 states that IFRS accounting policies need not be developed or applied if the impact of
applying them would be immaterial or where the benefits derived from the information would exceed the cost of providing it.
- Clinical Commissioning Groups along with all DH group entities must adopt the accounting policies set out in DH Group Accounting Manual, to
ensure that the same standards are applied consistently across the group.
- There is no requirement to disclose policies that are irrelevant or immaterial to the Clinical Commissioning Group and so only relevant and
material policies are disclosed.
- The Clinical Commissioning Group followed International Accounting Standard (IAS) 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, in determining the accounting treatment of the Contingent Liability disclosure.

1.6.2

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The following are the key estimations that management has made in the process of applying the Clinical Commissioning Group’s accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
Treasury discount rates which apply to various aspects of provisions, pensions and financial instruments – which are prescribed in the DH Group
Accounting Manual.
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Notes to the financial statements
- Key accruals including those associated with continuing care, prescribing and contracts with key providers where full year information is not
available at the time of drawing up the accounts, where a range of possible outcomes exist. The Clinical Commissioning Group has formed a
view as to a reasonable and appropriate estimate at the year-end.
- The analysis of revenue and expenditure between administration and programme costs will require a degree of estimation regarding
appropriate categorisation.
- The Clinical Commissioning Group liaises closely with the Local Authority and other third party suppliers in relation to any estimated charges to
ensure they are as accurate as possible. This is particularly important to pooled budgets including the Better Care Fund and the Clinical
Commissioning Group has worked with the Local Authority via the Connecting Care Executive to receive regular financial reports.
- The two vanguard programmes in Wakefield commenced in 2015/16 and are currently ongoing. The Clinical Commissioning Group is liaising
closely with the national assurance team and the relevant GP networks. There are estimated charges at year-end which have been agreed with
the relevant parties.
- The Clinical Commissioning Group hosts the Programme Office for West Yorkshire Sustainability and Transformation Programme "Healthy
Futures" and as such manages and monitors various programmes across West Yorkshire. It is necessary to make reasonable and appropriate
estimates and judgements at the year-end which will be agreed with the Healthy Futures Programme Management Office lead and any relevant
parties.
- Any accrual made is necessarily an estimate, whose outcome could be different to that forecast; this would include where contractual matters
are outstanding or in dispute.
1.7

Revenue
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at the fair value of the
consideration receivable.
Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that income is deferred.

1.8
1.8.1

Employee Benefits
Short-term Employee Benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees.
The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is not recognised in the financial statements, as the amounts
involved are not considered material.

1.8.2

Retirement Benefit Costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme
that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales.
The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and
liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the Clinical Commissioning Group of
participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the
liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the Clinical Commissioning Group commits itself to the retirement,
regardless of the method of payment.

1.9

Other Expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured at the fair
value of the consideration payable.
Expenses and liabilities in respect of grants are recognised when the Clinical Commissioning Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation, which occurs when all of the conditions attached to the payment have been met.

1.10
1.10.1

Property, Plant & Equipment
Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:
· It is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
· It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to the Clinical Commissioning Group;
· It is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
· The cost of the item can be measured reliably; and,
· The item has a cost of at least £5,000; or,
· Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are functionally
interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single
managerial control; or,
· Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective cost.
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the components are treated
as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.

1.10.2

Valuation
All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset
and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. All assets are
measured subsequently at valuation.
Fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not considered to be materially different from current value in existing
use.

1.10.3

Subsequent Expenditure
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable cost is capitalised. Where
subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of the item
replaced is written-out and charged to operating expenses.
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1.11

Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairments
The CCG holds no property or plant, but only IT equipment, which is depreciated over a period of 4 years, on a straight line basis.
At each reporting period end, the Clinical Commissioning Group checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine whether
there has been a loss and, if so, its amount.

1.12

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases. The CCG only holds operating leases.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1.13

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the first-in first-out cost formula. This is considered to be a reasonable
approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of stocks. Inventories are now being recognised by the Clinical Commissioning Group due to
the stocks for wheelchairs and Integrated Community Equipment Service (ICES) held in the Better Care Funds. The responsibility for the safe
keeping and maintenance of the stock system and for counting lies with Wakefield Metropolitan District Council but the Clinical Commissioning
Group shares joint control as specified in the s75 pooled budget arrangement.

1.14

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents
are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with
insignificant risk of change in value.
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an
integral part of the clinical commissioning group’s cash management.

1.15

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Clinical Commissioning Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Clinical Commissioning Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate as follows:
· Timing of cash flows (0 to 5 years inclusive): Minus 2.70% (previously: minus 1.55%)
· Timing of cash flows (6 to 10 years inclusive): Minus 1.95% (previously: minus 1.%)
· Timing of cash flows (over 10 years): Minus 0.80% (previously: minus 0.80%)
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

1.16

Clinical Negligence Costs
The NHS Litigation Authority operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Clinical Commissioning Group pays an annual contribution to the
NHS Litigation Authority which in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although the NHS
Litigation Authority is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal liability remains with the Clinical Commissioning
Group.

1.17

Non-Clinical Risk Pooling
The Clinical Commissioning Group participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk
pooling schemes under which the Clinical Commissioning Group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return,
receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular
claims are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.

1.18

Continuing Healthcare Risk Pooling
In 2014-15 a risk pool scheme was introduced by NHS England for continuing healthcare claims, for claim periods prior to 31 March 2013.
Under the scheme the CCG contributes annually to a pooled fund, which is used to settle the claims.

1.19

Contingencies
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Clinical Commissioning Group, or a present obligation that
is not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.
Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.

1.20

Financial Assets
Financial assets are recognised when the Clinical Commissioning Group becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of
trade receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired
or the asset has been transferred.
Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
· Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss;
· Held to maturity investments;
· Available for sale financial assets; and,
· Loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
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Notes to the financial statements
1.21

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the Clinical Commissioning Group becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial
liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

1.22

Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the Clinical Commissioning Group are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax
on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost
of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.23

Foreign Currencies
The Clinical Commissioning Group’s functional currency and presentational currency is sterling. Transactions denominated in a foreign currency
are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are restated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March. Resulting exchange gains and losses for either of these
are recognised in the Clinical Commissioning Group’s surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise.

1.24

Losses & Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed
legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the
generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled.
Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would
have been made good through insurance cover had the Clinical Commissioning Group not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums
then being included as normal revenue expenditure).

1.25

Joint Operations
Joint operations are activities undertaken by the Clinical Commissioning Group in conjunction with one or more other parties but which are not
performed through a separate entity. The Clinical Commissioning Group records its share of the income and expenditure' gains and losses,
assets and liabilities and cash flows.
The CCG has a joint arrangement with Wakefield Metropolitan District Council under 2 separate s75 arrangements: Better Care Fund and Short
Breaks.

1.26

Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted
The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2016-17, all of which
are subject to consultation:
· IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (application from 1 January 2018)
· IFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts (not applicable to DH groups bodies)
· IFRS 15: Revenue for Contract with Customers (application from 1 January 2018)
· IFRS 16: Leases (application from 1 January 2019)
The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the accounts for 2016-17, were they applied in that year.
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2 Other Operating Revenue
2016-17
Total

2016-17
Admin

2016-17
Programme

2015-16
Total

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits
Patient transport services
Prescription fees and charges
Dental fees and charges
Education, training and research
Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure: NHS
Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure: non-NHS
Receipt of donations for capital acquisitions: NHS Charity
Receipt of Government grants for capital acquisitions
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Continuing Health Care risk pool contributions
Income generation
Rental revenue from finance leases
Rental revenue from operating leases
Other revenue
Total other operating revenue

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
3,564
0
0
0
0
2,083
5,647

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
143
0
0
0
0
111
254

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
3,421
0
0
0
0
1,973
5,394

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
3,039
0
0
0
0
1,148
4,187

2016-17
Total
£'000
5,647
0
5,647

2016-17
2016-17
Admin
Programme
£'000
£'000
254
5,394
0
0
254
5,394

2015-16
Total
£'000
4,187
0
4,187

2016-17
Total
£'000
446
899
111
57
45
286
274
993
103
156
104
90
-

2016-17
Admin
£'000

2015-16
Total
£'000

3.1 Revenue

From rendering of services
From sale of goods
Total

3.2 Analysis of Non Patient Care Services to Other Bodies

Healthy Futures recharge cost to other CCGs
Vanguard Mental Health
Out of Area prescribing recharge to other CCGs
Walk in Centre Out of Area Costs
CHC Contracting recharge
Recharge for salaries and contribution to shared costs
Miscellaneous
Rent Rebates
Children and Young People IAPT funding
S256 funding
Intergrated Care resource
Wellness Checks funding
WY Emergency Care
Recharge to other CCGS for share of 111 overhead
Reablement funding - Joint legacy reserve

3,564

2016-17
Programme
£'000
446
899
111
57
45
286
143
131
993
103
156
104
90
143

3,421

90
304
96
181

430
338
1,600
3,039

3.3 Analysis of Other Revenue
2016-17
Total
£'000
NHS England flu vacinnes & pneumococcal recharge
NHS England Prescribing Recharges for Meningococal
NHS England asylum seekers funding
Psychosexual counselling
Staff lease car scheme
YHCS building rent/services and staff recharges
Miscellaneous
Continuing Care Funding recharge to WMDC
Healthy Futures
Prescribing drugs rebates and out of area charges
Care Home Vanguard
Syrian Refugees funding
STP Support
Integrated Care Resource

455
295
68
343
186
229
150
98
155
104
2,083
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2016-17
Admin
£'000

43
68

111

2016-17
Programme
£'000
455
295
25
275
186
229
150
98
155
104
1,972

2015-16
Total
£'000
476
29
295
25
64
107
152

1,148
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4 Employee Benefits and Staff Numbers
4.1.1 Employee Benefits

2016-17
Total
£'000
6,716
545
682
0
0
0
0
7,943

Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employer contributions to NHS pension scheme
Other pension costs
Other post-employment benefits
Other employment benefits
Termination benefits
Gross employee benefits expenditure

Total
Permanent
Employees
£'000
5,327
545
682
0
0
0
0
6,554

Other
£'000
1,389
0
0
0
0
0
0
1,389

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.2)
Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs

0
7,943

0
6,554

0
1,389

Less: Employee costs capitalised
Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs

0
7,943

0
6,554

0
1,389

2015-16
Total
£'000
5,085
330
487
0
0
0
0
5,902

Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employer contributions to NHS pension scheme
Other pension costs
Other post-employment benefits
Other employment benefits
Termination benefits
Gross employee benefits expenditure

Total
Permanent
Employees
£'000
4,057
330
487
0
0
0
0
4,874

Other
£'000
1,028
0
0
0
0
0
0
1,028

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.2)
Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs

0
5,902

0
4,874

0
1,028

Less: Employee costs capitalised
Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs

0
5,902

0
4,874

0
1,028

Employee costs and numbers have increased due to full year effect of Continuing Health Care staff transfers to CCG and
Healthy Futures staff now are directly employed

4.1.2 Recoveries in Respect of Employee Benefits
There were no recoveries in respect of employee benefits (2016 nil).
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4.2 Average Number of People Employed
2016-17
Permanently
employed
Number

Total
Number
Total
Of the above:
Number of whole time equivalent people
engaged on capital projects

2015-16
Total
Number

Other
Number

149

131

18

115

0

0

0

0

2016-17
Number
1,002
131
7.65

2015-16
Number
937
96
9.76

4.3 Staff Sickness Absence and Ill Health Retirements

Total Days Lost
Total Staff Years
Average working Days Lost

These figures are for the year ended 31 December 2016. (2016: year ended December 2015).

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds

Total additional Pensions liabilities accrued in the year
Ill health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pension Scheme

4.4 Exit Packages Agreed in the Financial Year
There were no exit packages agreed in the year (2016 nil).
There were no departures where special payments were made (2016 nil).
There were no other agreed departures in the year (2016 nil).
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2016-17
Number
0

2015-16
Number
1

£'000
0

£'000
0
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4.5 Pension Costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. Details of the benefits payable under these
provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/Pensions.
The Scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The Scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies
to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities.
Therefore, the Scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the Clinical Commissioning Group of
participating in the Scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the Scheme for the accounting period.
The Scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, every five years) and an accounting valuation every year.
An outline of these follows:
4.5.1 Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was as at 31 March 2012 and published in June 2014.
The primary purpose of the 2012 actuarial valuation was to set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2015, in light of the
introduction of the new pension arrangements from 1 April 2015, and the initial employer cost cap (maximum employer contributions)
which is required by the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. Both the employer contribution rate and employer cost cap have been included
in Scheme Regulations.
The next actuarial valuation is expected to be carried out as at 31 March 2016. This will set the employer contribution rate payable from
April 2019 and will consider the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap. There are provisions in the Public Service Pension
Act 2013 to adjust member benefits or contribution rates if the cost of the Scheme changes by more than 2% of pay. Subject to this
‘employer cost cap’ assessment, any required revisions to member benefits or contribution rates will be determined by the Secretary of
State for Health after consultation with the relevant stakeholders.
For 2016-17, employers’ contributions of £682k were payable to the NHS Pensions Scheme (2015-16: £487k) at the rate of 14.3% of
pensionable pay.
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5 Operating Expenses
2016-17
Total
£'000
Gross employee benefits
Employee benefits excluding governing body members
Executive governing body members
Total gross employee benefits
Other costs
Services from other CCGs and NHS England
Services from foundation trusts
Services from other NHS trusts
Services from other WGA bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies
Chair and non executive members
Supplies and services – clinical
Supplies and services – general
Consultancy services
Establishment
Transport
Premises
Impairments and reversals of receivables
Inventories written down and consumed
Depreciation
Amortisation
Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment
Impairments and reversals of intangible assets
Impairments and reversals of financial assets
· Assets carried at amortised cost
· Assets carried at cost
· Available for sale financial assets
Impairments and reversals of non-current assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals of investment properties
Audit fees
Other non statutory audit expenditure
· Internal audit services
· Other services
General dental services and personal dental services
Prescribing costs
Pharmaceutical services
General ophthalmic services
GPMS/APMS and PCTMS
Other professional fees excl. audit
Grants to other bodies
Clinical negligence
Research and development (excluding staff costs)
Education and training
Change in discount rate
Provisions
Funding to group bodies
CHC Risk Pool contributions
Other expenditure
Total other costs
Total operating expenses

2016-17
Admin
£'000

2016-17
Programme
£'000

2015-16
Total
£'000

7,416
527
7,943

3,785
474
4,259

3,630
53
3,683

5,505
397
5,902

3,014
59,598
296,855
0
88,669
164
4
1,875
120
1,481
20
380
0
0
9
0
0
0

0
9
2
0
0
164
0
1,101
14
465
13
307
0
0
9
0
0
0

3,014
59,589
296,852
0
88,669
0
4
774
107
1,016
7
73
0
0
0
0
0
0

4,352
52,198
284,999
0
82,095
169
0
1,202
303
598
7
208
0
0
4
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
84

0
0
0
0
0
84

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
81

35
0
0
62,385
0
0
53,692
1,170
491
0
0
234
0
0
0
1,231
1
571,513

35
0
0
0
0
0
0
486
0
0
0
114
0
0
0
0
1
2,804

0
0
0
62,385
0
0
53,692
684
491
0
0
119
0
0
0
1,231
0
568,709

44
46
0
63,194
0
0
52,701
606
29
0
0
113
0
238
0
3,078
18
546,283

579,456

7,063

572,392

552,185

2016-17
Total
CCG Running Costs
Running Costs (£'000s)
Registered Population
Running costs per head of population

6,810
365,164
18.65

The analysis below shows total Vanguard costs and the location of these costs in the Operating Costs above.
£'000
Employee benefits excluding governing body members
176
Services from Foundations trusts
67
Services from other NHS trusts
307
Purchase of Healthcare from non-NHS bodies
3,990
Establishment
73
Transport
1
Premises
4
Other professional fees excluding audit
159
Education & Training
(1)
Total Vanguard Operating Costs
4,776
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2015-16
Total
7,530
363,279
20.73
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6.1 Better Payment Practice Code
Measure of Compliance

2016-17
Number

2016-17
£'000

2015-16
Number

2015-16
£'000

Non-NHS payables
Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year
Total Non-NHS trade Invoices paid within target
Percentage of non-NHS trade invoices paid within target

13,084
12,935
98.86%

140,526
140,141
99.73%

11,977
11,784
98.39%

88,913
88,145
99.14%

NHS payables
Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target

3,014
2,980
98.87%

361,021
360,610
99.89%

2,672
2,611
97.72%

344,557
343,573
99.71%

6.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
The CCG made no payments in respect of interest on late payment of debts (2016 nil)
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7 Operating Leases
The CCG has entered into lease arrangements to secure property for conducting the business of healthcare and associated administration. All arrangements have been
assessed individually and determined to be operating leases with reference to IAS 17.
Whilst our arrangements with NHS Property Services Limited fall within the definition of operating leases, rental charge for future years has not yet been agreed.
Consequently this note includes future minimum lease payments for other rental arrangements only.
7.1 As Lessee
`
7.1.1 Payments Recognised as an Expense
Land
£'000
Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments
Contingent rents
Sub-lease payments
Total

Buildings
£'000
0
0
0
0

2016-17
Total
£'000

Other
£'000

332
0
0
332

87
0
0
87

7.1.2 Future minimum lease payments
Land
£'000
Payable:
No later than one year
Between one and five years
After five years
Total

Buildings
£'000
0
0
0
0

39
39
0
78

Other leases are for photocopiers and leased cars.
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418
0
0
418
2016-17
Total
£'000

Other
£'000
0
0
0
0

Land
£'000

Buildings
£'000
0
0
0
0

Land
£'000
39
39
0
78

311
0
0
311

Buildings
£'000
0
0
0
0

0

Other
£'000
46
0
0
46

Other
£'000
42
23
12
77

2015-16
Total
£'000
357
0
0
357
2015-16
Total
£'000
42
23
12
77
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8 Property, Plant and Equipment
Information
Technology
£'000
38

2016-17
Cost or valuation at 01 April 2016
Addition of assets under construction and payments on account
Additions purchased
Additions donated
Additions government granted
Additions leased
Reclassifications
Reclassified as held for sale and reversals
Disposals other than by sale
Upward revaluation gains
Impairments charged
Reversal of impairments
Transfer (to)/from other public sector body
Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation
Cost/Valuation at 31 March 2017

Total
£'000
38

0
67
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
105

0
67
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
105

4

4

Reclassifications
Reclassified as held for sale and reversals
Disposals other than by sale
Upward revaluation gains
Impairments charged
Reversal of impairments
Charged during the year
Transfer (to)/from other public sector body
Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation
Depreciation at 31 March 2017

0
0
0
0
0
0
9
0
0
14

0
0
0
0
0
0
9
0
0
14

Net Book Value at 31 March 2017

91

91

Purchased
Donated
Government Granted
Total at 31 March 2017

91
0
0
91

91
0
0
91

Owned
Held on finance lease
On-SOFP Lift contracts
PFI residual: interests

91
0
0
0

91
0
0
0

Total at 31 March 2017

91

91

Depreciation 01 April 2016

Asset financing:

8.1 Economic Lives
Minimum
Life (years)
Information technology

4
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Maximum
Life (Years)
4
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9 Inventories

Drugs

Balance at 01 April 2016

0

0

0

0

Loan
Equipment
£'000
562

Additions
Inventories recognised as an expense in the period
Write-down of inventories (including losses)
Reversal of write-down previously taken to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure
Transfer (to)/from Goods for resale
Balance at 31 March 2017

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

20
0
0
0
0
582

£'000

Consumables

Energy

£'000

£'000

Work in
Progress
£'000

Other
£'000

The stock relates to joint arrangements with Wakefield Metropolitan District Council, under the Better Care Fund for wheelchairs and Integrated Care and Equipment Services (ICES).
£582k is made up of 100% (£177k) of wheelchair stock and 60% (£405k) of the ICES stock, in line with the CCG's pooled fund contributions (2016: 100% £199k and 60% £363k respectively).
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Total
£'000
0

562

0
0
0
0
0
0

20
0
0
0
0
582
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10 Trade and Other Receivables

Current
2016-17
£'000

NHS receivables: Revenue
NHS receivables: Capital
NHS prepayments
NHS accrued income
Non-NHS and Other WGA receivables: Revenue
Non-NHS and Other WGA receivables: Capital
Non-NHS and Other WGA prepayments
Non-NHS and Other WGA accrued income
Provision for the impairment of receivables
VAT

Non-current
2016-17
£'000

Current
2015-16
£'000

Non-current
2015-16
£'000

1,270
0
63
0
371
0
4
189
0
132

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1,360
0
0
15
188
0
549
205
0
168

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Interest receivables
Finance lease receivables
Operating lease receivables
Other receivables and accruals
Total Trade & other receivables

0
0
0
0
2
2,030

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
2,485

0
0
0
0
0
0

Total current and non current

2,030

2,485

0

0

Private finance initiative and other public private partnership
arrangement prepayments and accrued income

Included above:
Prepaid pensions contributions

The majority of trade is with other NHS England bodies. As NHS England is funded by Government to fund CCGs to commission
services, no credit scoring of them is considered necessary.
10.1 Receivables past their due date but not impaired

2016-17
£'000

By up to three months
By three to six months
By more than six months
Total

2015-16
£'000
46
6
2
54

£31k of the amount above has subsequently been recovered post the statement of financial position date.
The CCG did not hold any collateral against receivables outstanding at 31 March 2017 (2016 nil).
10.2 Provision for Impairment of Receivables
The CCG needed to make no provision for impairment of receivables (2016 nil)
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240
0
0
240
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11 Cash and cash equivalents

Balance at 01 April 2016
Net change in year
Balance at 31 March 2017
Made up of:
Cash with the Government Banking Service
Cash with Commercial banks
Cash in hand
Current investments
Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position
Bank overdraft: Government Banking Service
Bank overdraft: Commercial banks
Total bank overdrafts
Balance at 31 March 2017
Patient monies held by the Clinical Commissioning Group, not included above
The balance at the year end is within the tolerance set by NHS England.
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2016-17
£'000
527
151
678

2015-16
£'000
145
382
527

677
0
1
0
678

526
0
1
0
527

0
0
0

0
0
0

678

527

0

0
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12 Trade and other payables

Current
2016-17
£'000

Interest payable
NHS payables: revenue
NHS payables: capital
NHS accruals
NHS deferred income
Non-NHS and Other WGA payables: Revenue
Non-NHS and Other WGA payables: Capital
Non-NHS and Other WGA accruals (Note 1)
Non-NHS and Other WGA deferred income
Social security costs
VAT
Tax
Payments received on account
Other payables and accruals (Note 2)
Total Trade & Other Payables

0
2,951
0
37
0
3,303
0
19,158
0
96
0
74
0
971
26,590

Total current and non-current

26,590

Non-current
2016-17
£'000

Current
2015-16
£'000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Non-current
2015-16
£'000

0
1,430
0
0
0
3,915
1
16,675
0
64
0
61
0
357
22,503
22,503

Note 1. The main elements of this figure are: £9.4m Prescribing accrual, £7.2m relating to Continuing Healthcare accruals and
£2.6m Co-Commissioning (2016: £9.6m and £7m and nil respectively).
Note 2. Other payables include £220k GP services and £593k outstanding pension contributions at 31 March 2017 (£144k and
£84k 2016).
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0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
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13 Provisions
Current
2016-17
£'000

Non-current
2016-17
£'000

Pensions relating to former directors
Pensions relating to other staff
Restructuring
Redundancy
Agenda for change
Equal pay
Legal claims
Continuing care
Other
Total

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
238
238

Total current and non-current

238
Pensions
Relating to
Former
Directors
£'000

Current
2015-16
£'000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Non-current
2015-16
£'000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
107
238
345

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

345

Pensions
Relating to
Other Staff
£'000

Restructuring
£'000

Redundancy
£'000

Agenda for
Change
£'000

Equal Pay
£'000

Legal Claims
£'000

Continuing
Care
£'000

Other
£'000

Total
£'000

Balance at 01 April 2016

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

107

238

345

Arising during the year
Utilised during the year
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount
Change in discount rate
Transfer (to)/from other public sector body
Transfer (to)/from other public sector body under absorption
Balance at 31 March 2017

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
(107)
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
238

0
(107)
0
0
0
0
0
238

Expected timing of cash flows:
Within one year
Between one and five years
After five years
Balance at 31 March 2017

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

238
0
0
238

238
0
0
238

Continuing Care provisions related to retrospective continuing care criteria claims. The value of these claims was estimated based on the likely future obligation when considering the number of claims received and their potential
value. During the year most claims have been actioned, leaving a small number under appeal and also a small number awaiting financial checks.
The CCG has provided £238k with regard to a possible liability to NHS Property Services in relation to unoccupied premise space (2016 £238k).
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14 Commitments
14.1 Capital Commitments
The CCG had no capital commitments at the year end (2016 nil)
15 Financial Instruments
15.1 Financial Risk Management
Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or
changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.
Because the Clinical Commissioning Group is financed through parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced
by business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed
companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The Clinical Commissioning Group has limited powers to borrow or
invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change
the risks facing the Clinical Commissioning Group in undertaking its activities.
Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the Clinical
Commissioning Group standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Governing Body. Treasury activity is subject to review by
the NHS Clinical Commissioning Group and internal auditors.
15.1.1 Currency Risk
The Clinical Commissioning Group is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being
in the UK and sterling based. The Clinical Commissioning Group has no overseas operations. The Clinical Commissioning Group therefore
has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
15.1.2 Interest Rate Risk
The Clinical Commissioning Group borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by NHS England.
The borrowings are for 1 to 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate,
fixed for the life of the loan. The Clinical Commissioning Group therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
15.1.3 Credit Risk
Because the majority of the Clinical Commissioning Group and revenue comes from parliamentary funding, the Clinical Commissioning
Group has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposure as at the end of the financial year are in receivables from customers, as
disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.
15.1.4 Liquidity Risk
NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits, which are financed from resources
voted annually by Parliament. The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group draws down cash to cover expenditure, as the need arises. The
NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.
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15 Financial Instruments cont'd
15.2 Financial Assets

Embedded derivatives
Receivables:
· NHS
· Non-NHS
Cash at bank and in hand
Other financial assets
Total at 31 March 2017

At ‘fair value
through profit and
loss’
2016-17
£'000

Loans and
Receivables
2016-17
£'000

Available for
Sale
2016-17
£'000

0

0

0

0

0
0
0
0
0

1,270
560
678
2
2,510

0
0
0
0
0

1,270
560
678
2
2,510

At ‘fair value
through profit and
loss’
2015-16
£'000
Embedded derivatives
Receivables:
· NHS
· Non-NHS
Cash at bank and in hand
Other financial assets
Total at 31 March 2017

Loans and
Receivables
2015-16
£'000

Available for
Sale
2015-16
£'000

0

0

0

0
0
0
0
0

1,375
393
527
0
2,295

0
0
0
0
0

1,375
393
527
0
2,295

At ‘fair value
through profit and
loss’
2016-17
£'000

Other
2016-17
£'000

Total
2016-17
£'000

0

0

0

0
0
0
0
0
0

2,988
23,432
0
0
0
26,420

2,988
23,432
0
0
0
26,420

At ‘fair value
through profit and
loss’
2015-16
£'000
Embedded derivatives
Payables:
· NHS
· Non-NHS
Private finance initiative, LIFT and finance lease obligations
Other borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Total at 31 March 2017

Other
2015-16
£'000

Total
2015-16
£'000

0

0

0

0
0
0
0
0
0

1,430
20,947
0
0
0
22,377

1,430
20,947
0
0
0
22,377

16 Contingent Liabilities
The Clinical Commissioning Group has taken responsibility from West Wakefield Health & Wellbeing Ltd (WWHWB) for leading
the Multispecialty Community Provider (MCP) Vanguard, and as part of the transition has sought to safeguard public resources by
retaining existing vanguard resources. The CCG intends to enter into a legal agreement, after the Statement of Financial
Position’s date, to underwrite a potential future VAT liability for WWHWB which is estimated as £685k and is subject to an awaited
decision from HMRC in relation to the VAT status regarding the national position on New Models of Care.
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Total
2015-16
£'000

0

15.3 Financial Liabilities

Embedded derivatives
Payables:
· NHS
· Non-NHS
Private finance initiative, LIFT and finance lease obligations
Other borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Total at 31 March 2017

Total
2016-17
£'000
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17 Operating Segments
Gross
expenditure
£'000

Income

Net expenditure

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

NHS Wakefield CCG

579,456

(5,647)

573,808

3,381

(26,828)

(23,447)

Total

579,456

(5,647)

573,808

3,381

(26,828)

(23,447)

17.1 Reconciliation between Operating Segments and SoCNE
2016-17
£'000
Total net expenditure reported for
operating segments

573,808
0

Reconciling items
Total net expenditure per the
Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure

573,808

17.2 Reconciliation between Operating Segments and SoFP
2016-17
£'000
Total assets reported for operating
segments

3,381
0

Reconciling items
Total assets per Statement of
Financial Position

3,381

2016-17
£'000
Total liabilities reported for
operating segments
Reconciling items
Total liabilities per Statement of
Financial Position

(26,828)
0
(26,828)
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18 Pooled Budgets
Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 allows partnership arrangements between National Health Service bodies, Local Authorities and other
agencies in order to improve and co-ordinate services. Each partner makes a contribution to the pooled budget, with the aim of focusing
services and activities for a client group. Funds contributed are normally used for the services represented in the pooled budget and allow the
organisations involved to act in a more cohesive way.
As at 31st March 2017 the NHS Wakefield CCG has two pooled budgets under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006. These pools relate to (i) Short
Breaks Services created 2006-07 and (ii) Wakefield Better Care Fund created 2015-16.
Short Breaks' Services
The CCG in association with the local authority has established a Short Breaks Service. This led to the creation in 2015-16 of a pooled budget
with the local authority as the lead commissioner and provider.
The details of the contributions and expenditure are disclosed as below:

Short Breaks

WCCG

WMDC

Total

Total

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

2015-16

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

Total Income
Total Expenditure
Surplus/(Deficit)

1,286
1,286
0
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2,225
2,406
(181)

3,511
3,692
(181)

3,570
3,686
(116)
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18 Pooled Budgets cont'd

Wakefield Better Care Fund (BCF)
The CCG in association with the Local Authority (LA) has created a pooled budget for the Wakefield Better Care Fund. The CCG acts as the host but either the CCG
or the LA have agreed to be lead commissioner for the individual BCF services commissioned from providers.
The details of the contributions and expenditure are disclosed below:

Better Care Fund

Total Income
Total Expenditure (Note 2)
Surplus/(Deficit)

WCCG

WMDC

s75 tfr

Total

Total

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

2015-16

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

47,690
47,690
0

26,086
26,086
0

-14,969
-14,969
0
(Note 1)

58,807
58,807
0

41,587
41,587
0

Note 1. The income and expenditure numbers are quoted gross per the transactions reported by each organisation in their ledgers. The CCG transferred £14.654m
(2016 £12.165m) of funds to the LA under the BCF section 75 agreement so that the LA can lead commission services from providers. The CCG has transfered a
further £0.315m (2016: nil) in grant funds to the LA which has been used to provide additional funds to scheme 5. The LA has recognised the income from the CCG
in its reporting. To report the BCF pool correctly, the total £14.969m has been netted off within the pool to avoid overstating both income and expenditure.
Note 2. Scheme 5 of the BCF (Integrated Care Equipment services (ICES) and Wheelchair services (WS)) has an agreement between the CCG and local authority
that year end stocks of equipment should be reported by each partner in proportion to their pooled fund contributions for scheme 5. WCCG has reported its share;
being £405,433 for Integrated Care Equipment and £177,014 for Wheelchairs (2016 £363,142 and £199,279 respectively).
Breakdown of the seven schemes is as follows:-

Scheme 1. Proactive care
Total Income
Total Expenditure
Surplus/(Deficit)

Scheme 2. Prevention & Self care

WCCG

WMDC

s75 tfr

Total

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

32,853
32,853
0

WMDC

s75 tfr

Total

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

1,908
1,908
0

Total Income
Total Expenditure
Surplus/(Deficit)

10,091
10,091
0

WMDC

s75 tfr

Total

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

1,965
1,965
0

2,789
2,789
0

(1,584)
(1,584)
0

3,170
3,170
0

WCCG

WMDC

s75 tfr

Total

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

5,354
5,354
0

2,599
2,599
0

(2,527)
(2,527)
0

5,426
5,426
0

WCCG

WMDC

s75 tfr

Total

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

2,771
2,771
0

4,097
4,097
0

(2,771)
(2,771)
0

4,097
4,097
0

WCCG

WMDC

s75 tfr

Total

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

£'000

£'000

Total Income
Total Expenditure
Surplus/(Deficit)

Scheme 7. MCP Vanguard

(1,908)
(1,908)
0

WCCG

Total Income
Total Expenditure
Surplus/(Deficit)

Scheme 6. Care Home Vanguard

10,091
10,091
0

2016-17

Total Income
Total Expenditure
Surplus/(Deficit)

Scheme 5. ICES and WCS

33,184
33,184
0

WCCG

Total Income
Total Expenditure
Surplus/(Deficit)

Scheme 4. Mental Health

(6,179)
(6,179)
0

2016-17
Total Income
Total Expenditure
Surplus / (Deficit)

Scheme 3. Community Solutions

6,510
6,510
0

303
303
0

£'000
0
0
0

£'000
0
0
0

303
303
0

WCCG

WMDC

s75 tfr

Total

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

2016-17

£'000

£'000
2,536
2,536
0

£'000
0
0
0

£'000
0
0
0

2,536
2,536
0

Note 3. In 2015/16 there were three schemes in operation. It is not possible to show direct comparatives of those three schemes against the
seven schemes in operation in 2016/17
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19 Related party transactions
Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:
Receipts Amounts Amounts
from
owed to due from
Payments to Related Related Related
Related Party
Party
Party
Party
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
Novus Health Ltd

3,170

-

-

-

Shareholders of which include:
Ferrybridge Medical Centre - Dr Phil Earnshaw
Lupset Surgery - Dr A Sheppard
Chapelthorpe Surgery - Dr C Harries
Grove Surgery - Dr P Jayakumar
New Southgate Surgery - Dr D Hallott
In each case the practice holds the shares and the CCG Governing Body member who is a GP in that practice has been noted for reference.
Kings Building Partnership - Dr D Brown

1

-

-

-

West Wakefield Health and Wellbeing Ltd
Shareholders of which are:
Lupset Surgery - Dr A Sheppard
Chapelthorpe Surgery - Dr C Harries

3,050

-

-

-

For 2015-16 the transactions with Novus Health Ltd totalled £2,253k and the creditor £432k; for the Kings Building Partnership totalled £1k and the creditor £0; for West Wakefield Health
and Wellbeing Ltd totalled £3,100 with nil creditor.

Receipts Amounts Amounts
from
owed to due from
Payments to Related Related Related
Related Party
Party
Party
Party
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
Transactions with GP practices in regard to Co-commissioning

Almshouse Surgery
Alverthorpe Surgery
Ash Grove Surgery
Castleford Medical Centre
Chapelthorpe Medical Centre
Church Street Surgery
College Lane Surgery
Crofton and Sharlston Health Centre
Dr Chandy & Partners (Churchview Health Centre)
Eastmoor Health Centre
Elizabeth Court Surgery
Ferrybridge Medical Centre
Friarwood Surgery
Grove Surgery
Henry Moore Clinic
Homestead Medical Centre
King Street Health Centre
LCD Wakefield (Walk-in-centre)
Dr Diggle & Dr Phillips (Churchview Health Centre)
Lupset Health Centre
Maybush Medical Centre
Middlestown Medical Centre
New Southgate Surgery
Newland Surgery
Northgate Surgery
Orchard Croft Medical Centre
Outwood Park Medical Centre
Park View Surgery
Patience Lane Surgery
Prospect Road Surgery
Queen Street Surgery
Riverside Medical Centre
St Thomas Road Surgery
Stanley Health Centre
Station Lane Medical Centre
Stuart Road Surgery
The Grange
Tieve Tara Medical Centre
Warrengate Medical Centre
White Rose Surgery

1,943
380
2,056
736
1,677
1,602
1,344
1,297
1,556
341
2,046
1,507
1,841
1,344
1,214
978
1,902
324
748
1,923
1,179
1,199
1,577
537
1,499
1,376
1,778
408
321
1,101
392
1,342
919
825
884
1,091
2,436
797
1,223
3,431

-

-

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year the CCG has had a significant number of material transactions with the
Department and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department, or has a degree of responsibility for. For example:
NHS England
North of England Commissioning Support Unit
NHS Foundation Trusts
NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups
NHS Trusts
NHS Supply Chain
NHS Litigation Authority
NHS Business Services Authority
NHS Professionals
NHS Property Services
In addition, the CCG has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies.
Most of these transactions have been with Wakefield Metropolitan District Council.
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20 Events After the end of the Reporting Period

There are no post balance sheet events which will have a material effect on the financial statements of the CCG.

21 Financial Performance Targets
NHS Clinical Commissioning Group have a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).
NHS Clinical Commissioning Group performance against those duties was as follows:
2016-17
Target
£'000
585,516
0
579,789
80
0
7,636

Expenditure not to exceed income
Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions
Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions
Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions
Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions
Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions

30

2016-17
Performance
£'000
579,523
0
573,808
67
0
7,063

2015-16
Target
£'000
558,281
0
554,004
90
0
8,214

2015-16
Performance
£'000
552,223
0
547,998
38
0
7,750
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22 Losses and Special Payments
22.1 Losses

The total number of NHS Clinical Commissioning Group losses and special payments cases, and their total value, was as follows:

Administrative write-offs
Fruitless payments
Store losses
Book Keeping Losses
Constructive loss
Cash losses
Claims abandoned
Total

Total
Number of
Cases
2016-17
Number
1
0
0
0
0
0
0

Total Value
of Cases
2016-17
£'000
1
0
0
0
0
0
0

Total Number
of Cases
2015-16
Number
1
0
0
0
0
0
0

Total Value
of Cases
2015-16
£'000
18
0
0
0
0
0
0

1

1

1

18

Total
Number of
Cases
2016-17
Number
0
1
0
0
0
1

Total Value
of Cases
2016-17
£'000
0
0
0
0
0
0

Total Number
of Cases
2015-16
Number
0
0
0
0
0
0

Total Value
of Cases
2015-16
£'000
0
0
0
0
0
0

22.2 Special Payments

Compensation payments
Extra contractual Payments
Ex gratia payments
Extra statutory/regulatory payments
Special severance payments
Total
The one case this year involved an amount rounding to less than £1k.
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Governing Body members

Chair and Chief Officer:
Dr Phillip Earnshaw – Chair
Dr Earnshaw has worked in Wakefield for more than 30 years. He is
senior partner at Ferrybridge Medical Centre and is part of a group
that also runs Park View Surgery and Queen Street Surgery. He has
been involved with the CCG from its inception and previously worked
for Eastern Wakefield and Wakefield District PCTs, latterly as a
board member as well as PEC Chair. He is passionate about high
quality, compassionate, safe care and is keen for health and social
care to modernise to meet the demands of a changing demography.
Committee membership:
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Member of the Integrated Governance Committee
 Member Clinical Cabinet.

Jo Webster Chief Officer
From a background in practice management, Jo Webster joined
Doncaster Central and East Primary Care Group in 2000, supporting
general practice and working closely with the local authority to
support community development and regeneration. She has held
leadership roles with Doncaster Central PCT and Yorkshire and the
Humber SHA. She joined NHS Wakefield District in 2008 and went
on to become Director of Commissioning, before taking on her
current role as Chief Officer for NHS Wakefield CCG.
Committee membership:
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Member of the Integrated Governance Committee
 Member Connecting Care Executive
 Member of Probity Committee.
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Clinicians:
Dr Avijit Biswas – GP Member
Dr Biswas is a GP at Pinfold Surgery, Elizabeth Court Surgery and
the Health Centre, Castleford. He is also a GP Trainer for the
Wakefield District Training Scheme. He is clinical lead for long term
conditions commissioning and works closely with the Public Health
team with the aim of improving local outcomes.
Committee membership:
 Was a member of the Governing Body until 31 March 2017
 Member of the Clinical Cabinet.
Dr David Brown – GP Member
Dr Brown joined King’s Medical Practice in Normanton in 1984. He is
an approved GP trainer and was a GP Training Programme Director
until 2013. He is a CQC GP Specialist Advisor. For the CCG, David
leads on quality, prevention, education and training; and workforce
development.
Committee membership:
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Member of the Integrated Governance Committee
 Member of the Clinical Cabinet.
Dr Deborah Hallott – GP Member
Dr Hallott has worked as a GP for 23 years in Wakefield, the last 20
of those as a Partner at New Southgate Surgery. In addition to
general practice, she has a specific interest in women's health and is
an Honorary Lecturer with Leeds University Medical School,
currently offering general practice placements for third year medical
students.
Committee membership:
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Member of the Audit Committee
 Member of the Clinical Cabinet.
Dr Clive Harries – GP member
Dr Harries joined Chapelthorpe Medical Centre, Wakefield in 1999.
He is a GP trainer, sits as a GP member on the CCG’s Governing
Body and is the CCG’s clinical lead for information and
communication technology as well as for mental health service
commissioning. He is particularly interested in promoting evidence
based practice and digitally enabled care and collaboration.
Committee membership:
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Member of the Audit Committee and Clinical Cabinet.
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Dr Pravin Jayakumar – GP member
Dr Jayakumar has been a GP in Wakefield since 2008 having
undergone and completed his training in the area. He is the lead GP
at his Trinity Medical Centre Practice and a Medical Student tutor for
the University of Leeds. He leads on Primary Care within the CCG
and has a genuine passion for improving this for the population of
Wakefield, as well an improving the working lives of those he
represents.
Committee membership:
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Member of the Integrated Governance Committee
 Member of the Clinical Cabinet.
Dr Adam Sheppard – Assistant Clinical Chair
Dr Sheppard qualified as a doctor in 1987 and practices as a GP at
Lupset Health Centre. Currently assistant clinical lead for Wakefield
Clinical Commissioning Group focusing on urgent care, Dr Sheppard
is the Chair for West Yorkshire Urgent and Emergency Care Network.
He takes the lead role on complaints for his practice, where he is the
senior partner, and for the CCG, fulfilling a lifelong commitment to
improving standards and patient experience.
Committee membership:
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Chair of the Clinical Cabinet
 Member of the Audit Committee
 Member of the Connecting Care Executive.
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Directors and other members:
Andrew Balchin – Corporate Director, Adults, Health &
Communities (Wakefield Council)
Andrew Balchin started his local government career in 1988 and has
undertaken a variety of roles including policy development, strategic
housing and environmental services. Andrew is responsible for adult
social care, commissioning, public health, communities and
partnership working. Andrew also sits on Wakefield’s Health and
Wellbeing Board.
Committee membership:
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Chair of the Connecting Care Executive.
Mel Brown - NHS Wakefield CCG (& Wakefield Council),
Director of Commissioning and Integration
Before joining Wakefield in 2014, Mel Brown worked for NHSIQ on
the Integrated Care and Support Programme supporting areas to
make progress on their integrated care plans at pace. Prior to this
national role Mrs Brown work for NHS England local are team
supporting winter resilience and operational planning for CCG’s. Mrs
Brown has 14 years’ experience in working in local government in
variety of commissioning, transformation and partnership roles which
have focused on improving partnership working between Health and
Social Care to improve the delivery of integrated care.
Committee membership:
 Non voting member of the Governing Body
 Member of the Connecting Care Executive
 Member of Probity Committee.
Sharon Fox – Nurse Member
Sharon Fox had over 30 years’ experience working as a registered
nurse in Wakefield District, before becoming semi-retired in
December 2012. Currently she works as an independent nurse, and
as a Northern Region inspector for the Care Quality Commission
(CQC). For the CCG,
Committee membership:

Independent nurse lead and lead for adult safeguarding
and was a member of the Governing Body, Integrated
Governance Committee and Probity Committee until 31 January
2017.
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Dr Andrew Furber – Director of Public Health (Wakefield
Council)
Dr Furber has been Director of Public Health (DPH) for Wakefield
Council since 2009 and President of the UK Association of Directors
of Public Health since 2015. A qualified GP, he is the lead DPH in
Yorkshire and Humber for tobacco control. He was previously DPH in
North Lincolnshire and a Consultant in Public Health in Sheffield and
within the regional public health team.
Committee membership:
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Member of the Connecting Care Executive.
Diane Hampshire
Diane Hampshire qualified as a nurse at Dewsbury Hospital and has
worked in general nursing, midwifery and health visiting. She also
has a Masters’ Degree in Child Welfare and Law. Diane was Director
of Nursing and Quality for NHS Leeds West Clinical Commissioning
Group from 2012 until she retired in September 2015. Since then she
has undertaken safeguarding work for the Birmingham Safeguarding
Children Board and is the Board Nurse for NHS Leeds North CCG.
Committee membership:
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Member of Probity Committee.
.
Pat Keane – Deputy Chief Officer, Chief Operating Officer
Pat Keane has worked in the NHS for 40 years and is a qualified
general and mental health nurse. He has worked in a range of
managerial and leadership roles in the acute, community and mental
health sectors and as a cancer network director. He has held board
level posts in mental health and primary care trusts and as a deputy
chief executive and joined the CCG on a fixed term basis in April
2015 prior to commencing his current role across NHS North Kirklees
and NHS Wakefield CCGs in March 2016.
Committee membership:
 Non voting member of the Governing Body
 Member of the Integrated Governance Committee
 Was a member of the Probity Committee until 31 October
2016.
Mr Hany Lotfallah – Secondary care consultant
Hany Lotfallah became a Governing Body member in October 2012.
He has worked as a consultant obstetrician & gynaecologist at
Rotherham Foundation Trust since 2014 and is the lead for minimal
access surgery in gynaecology, clinical lead for risk in gynaecology
and the multidisciplinary team lead for gynae-oncology.
He has held various medical management positions over the last 10
years. In June 2014 he took over the post of ‘Director of Sexual
Health’ at Rotherham Foundation Trust.
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Committee membership:
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Member of the Probity Committee.
Andrew Pepper – Chief Finance Officer
Andrew Pepper is a qualified accountant with 27 years NHS
experience. He has been the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) at NHS
Wakefield CCG for over four years.
He has held senior positions in provider and commissioning sectors
including as Associate Director of Finance at the Mid Yorkshire
Hospital NHS Trust. Andrew has also chaired the Yorkshire and
Humber CFO network and is currently the Chair of the NHS Clinical
Commissioners Finance Forum.
Committee membership:
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Member of the Integrated Governance Committee
 Member Clinical Cabinet
 Member Connecting Care Executive
 Member Probity Committee
 Attends Audit Committee.
Jo Pollard – Chief of Service Delivery and Quality
Jo Pollard has over 30 years’ experience in the NHS, from a
background of general nursing, midwifery and health visiting. Jo has
worked in primary care, hospital and community services clinically,
managing services and with a local authority on health improvement
programmes and planning. She was previously Director of Urgent
Care for Yorkshire Ambulance Service and Programme Director for
major service changes across health and social care.
Committee membership:
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Member of Integrated Governance Committee
 Member Clinical Cabinet,
 Member Connecting Care Executive
 Member Probity Committee.
Alison Sugarman – Practice Manager Member
Alison Sugarman is the Practice Manager at Northgate Surgery in
Pontefract. She joined the Practice in 2013 after a management
career in the private sector in Leeds. She was responsible for the
smooth-running of large commercial contracts which involved
managing teams, completing tenders and contract negotiation. She
was chosen by her peers to represent them as Practice Manager
Advisor in 2014.
Committee membership:
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Member of the Integrated Governance Committee.
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Lay Members:
Sandra Cheseldine – Lay Member
Sandra Cheseldine is a lay member of the CCG Governing Body and
Chair of the Audit Committee. Sandra worked for Midland Bank,
latterly HSBC Bank plc for 30 years in a wide variety of roles. For the
last ten years of her career she worked as a senior manager in
Personal & Consumer Finance Audit for the Bank. She took early
retirement in 2006.
Committee membership:
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Chair of the Audit Committee
 Member of the Probity Committee.
Stephen Hardy – Lay Member
Stephen Hardy has been a journalist and public relations practitioner
for almost 40 years, latterly as Media and Public Relations Manager
and Consultation/ Public Engagement Co-ordinator for West Yorkshire
Fire and Rescue Authority. He has been closely involved with the
NHS locally since the mid-1970s, being a former Vice-Chair of
Wakefield West PCT and a complaints conciliator for Kirklees and
Wakefield. He takes a particular interest in patient/carer issues, audit
and governance.
Committee membership:
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Member of the Integrated Governance Committee,
 Member of Clinical Cabinet
 Member of the Probity Committee.
Richard Hindley – Lay member
Richard Hindley has a background in the NHS and social care and
has worked in the third sector since 2004, most recently supporting
Age UK to set up and deliver new services across Yorkshire and the
Humber. He provides consultancy to third sector organisations and is
chair of an international charity. He was previously chief executive of
South Yorkshire Funding Advice Bureau, and has been on the
boards of several third sector organisations. He chairs the Probity
and Integrated Governance committees and is a member of the
Audit Committee.
Committee membership
 Voting member of the Governing Body
 Chair of the Integrated Governance Committee
 Chair of the Probity Committee
 Member of the Audit Committee.
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Glossary / Acronyms
We have tried to avoid jargon, but there may be some terms or abbreviations that
you are not sure about. Below is a useful list of other words or terms that might be /
are included in the annual report.
A
A&E: Accident and Emergency
Acute healthcare: Medical and surgical treatment usually provided in a hospital
setting. See Secondary Care.
ANP: Advanced Nurse Practitioner
B
BCF: Better Care Fund
C
CC2H/ CCTH: Care Closer to Home
CCG: CCG stands for Clinical Commissioning Group. In April 2013, the CCG took
on the responsibility of commissioning the majority of secondary and some
community healthcare services for Wakefield patients. The CCG is an NHS
organisation which commissions quality services that are fair and equitable and that
will improve all our patients’ experiences of the health and care they receive.
Clinical: Relating to patient care e.g. clinical evidence, clinical practice.
Clinician: A health professional, such as a family doctor, psychiatrist, psychologist or
nurse, involved in clinical practice.
Clinical pathways: Medical guidelines or other management tools based on
evidence based practice for a specific group of patients which improve health results.
Commission: To decide on behalf of a local population what type, quantity and
quality of services it requires, obtain the services from service providers and monitor
the way they are provided. See Clinical Commissioning Group, Primary Care Trust.
Commissioner: The person or body who decides on behalf of a local population what
type, quantity and quality of services it requires, obtain the services from service
providers and monitor the way they are provided. See Clinical Commissioning
Group, Primary Care Trust.
CQC: Care Quality Commission. This is an organisation funded by the Government
to check all hospitals in England to make sure they are meeting government
standards and to share their findings with the public.
E
Emergency care: Treatment for medical and surgical emergencies that are likely to
need admission to hospital.
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Emergency department: Also known as ‘Accident & Emergency.’ A service available
24 hours a day, seven days a week where people receive treatment and/or
stabilisation for medical and surgical emergencies.
Emergency surgery: Surgery that is not planned and which is needed for urgent
conditions. This includes surgery for appendicitis, perforated or obstructed bowel
and gallbladder infections. It is also known as non-elective surgery.
F
Finance: The money/ budget that the CCG/ an organisation has and the
management of it.
G
GP: A doctor who treats a variety of illnesses and diseases, providing preventative
care and health education for everyone. Usually, but not always, based in the
community.
H
Healthcare: The diagnosis, treatment, and prevention of disease, illness, injury, and
other physical and mental impairments in humans.
Health and Wellbeing Plan: a district wide plan agreed with the local council to
improve the health of the district over a set period.
I
IAPT: Improving Access to Psychological Therapies
Inpatient: A patient who is admitted for a stay in hospital, usually for 24 hours for
treatment or an operation
J
JSNA: Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
M
MCP: Multispecialty Community Provider’
Medicine: A specialty that covers a wide range of conditions for which people are
admitted to hospital. Many focus on particular organs (e.g. the heart) or diseases
such as cancer. Medical specialties include: cardiovascular medicine, dermatology,
endocrinology and diabetes, gastroenterology, genito-urinary medicine, oncology
and rheumatology to name a few.
MYHT: Mid Yorkshire Hospitals Trust – The hospital trust for the Wakefield area
O
Outpatient: A patient who attends an appointment to receive treatment without
actually needing to be admitted to hospital. Outpatient care can be provided by
hospitals, GPs and community providers and is often used to follow up after
treatment or to assess for further treatment.
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Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC)/Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
(HOSC): The committee of the relevant local authority, or group of local authorities,
made up of local councillors who are responsible for monitoring health and social
care.
P
PHB: Personal Health Budget
Patient pathway or journey: This is the term used to describe the care a patient
receives from start to finish of a set timescale, in different stages. These can be
integrated care pathways which include multi-disciplinary services for patient care.
Performance: The achievement and outcome of a given task against known set of
standards, usually around completeness, cost and speed. In a contract, performance
is deemed to be the fulfilment of an obligation.
Primary care: The first contact a patient has with local healthcare in their community,
usually a GP, dentist or optician. (i.e. not secondary care, which is hospital based).
Q
Quality: The degree to which health services increase the likelihood of good health
outcomes and are consistent with current professional knowledge. There are often
six dimensions to quality: safety, effectiveness, patient centredness, timeliness,
efficiency and equity.
S
Secondary care: Healthcare services delivered by medical or other specialists,
usually in hospitals or clinics, that patients have been referred to by their GP or other
primary care provider.
Stakeholder: People and organisations with a shared interest in an issue, either
because they may be affected by it or be able to affect a decision about it.
Surgery: Medical specialty where surgeons specialise in operating on particular parts
of the body or to address specific injuries, diseases or degenerative conditions. The
main areas of surgery are cardiology, ear, nose and throat (ENT), general, oral and
maxillofacial, orthopaedic and trauma, paediatric, plastic and urology.
Sustainability: Ensuring a service can operate properly, well into the future, in a way
that is safe, of a high standard, appropriately staffed and which makes the best use
of the resources available.
W
Workforce: The people on an organisation’s payroll.
Y
YAS Yorkshire Ambulance Service.
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